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HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year” or
"Reporting Period”), the revenue of the Group was
approximately RMB501,437,000 (2021: RMB233,945,000),
representing an increase of approximately RMB267,492,000 or
114.3% as compared to the year ended 31 December 2021 (the
“Prior Year").

The gross profit of the Group for the Year was approximately
RMB193,698,000 (2021: RMB38,875,000), representing an
increase of approximately RMB154,823,000 or 398.3% as
compared to the Prior Year.

For the Year, the Group recorded net profit of approximately
RMB39,618,000 as compared to the net loss of approximately
RMB2,600,000 for the Prior Year. Profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company was approximately RMB21,851,000
(2021: loss for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately RMB2,600,000).

The basic and diluted earning per share was RMB1.70 cents

(2021: basic and diluted loss per share was RMB0.23 cents).

The Board has resolved not to declare the final dividend for the
Year.

Financial Highlights
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Statement from the Board of Directors

ESEHHE

To all shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Diwang
Industrial Holdings Limited (formerly known as Sunlight
Technology Holdings Limited) (the “Company”), we are
pleased to present the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the Year.

The year 2022 was marked by intense global uncertainty due
to the prolonged COVID-19 pandemic that began in 2020. The
outbreak in Hong Kong and mainland China in the first and
second quarters of 2022 had significantly impacted economic
recovery, while the global economy remained volatile. In
addition, the political instability between Russia and Ukraine
negatively affected the trading environment and the financial
industry, resulting in rising interest rates. These challenges,
including economic uncertainty, market volatility, and
unpredictable geopolitical tensions, are expected to continue
to impact the global economy in 2023.

Throughout the Reporting Period, there was a sharp rise
in energy prices, which contributed to a weakening of
global economic growth momentum, leading to a state of
“stagnation, inflation, and decline”. The domestic economy
of Mainland China is facing a challenging internal and
external environment, which has led to a decline in the
economic growth rate. Our production and operation of faux
leather chemicals encountered certain challenges during the
Reporting Period. In the first quarter, the business continued
to experience the sharp growth seen in the previous year.
However, in the early second quarter, the business was
affected by the epidemic in Shanghai and other areas.
Furthermore, during the first half of the Year, the prices of
raw and auxiliary materials and freight increased sharply, and
this trend continued through the third quarter. To diversify
our sources of income, we launched a Chinese liquor business
during the second quarter. However, the ongoing national
epidemic had a negative impact on the local economy,
affecting our businesses to some extent. Nonetheless, we
experienced a gradual recovery in the fourth quarter.
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Statement from the Board of Directors

EEEHHE

To address the challenges of a sluggish market, the Company
has implemented a range of measures, both internally
and externally. Internally, the Company has strengthened
management, invested in research and development,
developed high-tech and high value-added products,
improved internal skills, and increased efficiency. Externally,
the Company has adjusted production and operation plans
in response to market changes, focused on developing brand
customers, explored new markets, and improved product
and customer structure, as well as research and development
and management. These combined efforts have helped to
accumulate momentum for growth and development.

The Group is committed to vigorously growing and developing
its existing businesses. Specifically, the Group aims to maintain
sustainable growth in the Chinese liquor industry and
strengthen its market position in the faux leather chemicals
manufacturing industry. In the long run, the Group plans
to enhance its overall competitiveness and market share by
strengthening premium long-term relationships with existing
customers, proactively developing new customers, continuing
to strengthen research and development capabilities, and
expanding its product portfolio and geographical coverage.

APPRECIATION

Finally, we would like to express our gratitude to all employees,
shareholders and business partners of the Group. As we
venture into the future, the Group will continue to seize
opportunities and create long-term value for our shareholders
and the society.

On behalf of the Board
Lam Kam Kong Nathaniel
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENR®R DM

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group engaged in two primary business
activities: the research and development, manufacturing, and
sale of coating agents and synthetic resins (the “Faux Leather
Chemicals Business”) and the manufacturing and sale of
Chinese liquor products (the “Chinese Liquor Business”), the
latter of which began in the second quarter of the Year.

FAUX LEATHER CHEMICALS BUSINESS

Revenue generated from the Faux Leather Chemicals Business
increased by approximately RMB26,300,000 or 11.2%
from approximately RMB233,945,000 for the Prior Year to
approximately RMB260,245,000 for the Year, primarily due
to the gradual recovery of the global economy from the
COVID-19 pandemic and the increase of consumer demands in
various major industries. During the Year, despite factors such
as the high oil price, the international and domestic epidemics
and blocked export logistics which created downward pressure
on the product margins, the turnover recorded an increase for
the whole Year. The gross profit this segment for the Year was
approximately RMB40,760,000 (2021: RMB38,875,000).

The gross profit margin decreased from approximately 16.6%
to approximately 15.7% for the Year, which was mainly
attributable to the increase in the price of raw materials
because of the high oil price during the Year.

Selling and distribution expenses for the Year were
approximately RMB9,427,000 (2021: RMB8&,252,000). The
increase in selling and distribution expenses was mainly due
to the increase in sales and marketing activities. Selling and
distribution expenses for the Year accounted for approximately
3.62% (2021: approximately 3.53%) of the segment revenue.
Segment profit was approximately RMB11,679,000 (2021:
RMB12,249,000)

CHINESE LIQUOR BUSINESS

In the second quarter of the Year, the Group began
manufacturing and selling of Chinese baijiu products in the
PRC with a view to exploring business opportunities in the
food and beverage business in the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENB®R DM

During the Year, EM &M T EBEBR A7 (Guizhou
Dichiwang Sauce And Wine Company Limited*) (“Guizhou
Dichiwang”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
was established under the laws of the PRC in which the Group
indirectly owns 70.5% of its equity interest and i & & XX
{bEEERE(E A A (Hunan Jinkai Culture Communication
Company Limited*) owns 29.50% of its equity interest.

Guizhou Dichiwang procures all necessary raw materials
itself in producing Chinese baijiu products and outsources
the manufacturing process through an original equipment
manufacturer to an independent wine factory to produce
Chinese baijiu products. The Chinese baijiu products of
Guizhou Dichiwang comprise a comprehensive range of
products with varied packaging, alcohol content, design, taste,
etc., targeting the young to middle-aged public to middle class
consumer market in the PRC. Guizhou Dichiwang's Chinese
baijiu products are sold under the “Diwang Chi” (% )
label.

During the Year, the segment revenue from Chinese Liquor
Business was approximately RMB241,192,000. The gross profit
was approximately RMB152,938,000 after accounting for
the cost of raw materials and production fee. The Company
promotes and explores sales channels of its Chinese baijiu
products by (i) placing advertisements at airports, train stations
and online media platforms; and (ii) hosting wine tasting
events and various wine exhibitions and wine trade fairs in
the PRC. During the Year, the relevant selling and distribution
expenses approximately accounted for approximately 28.06%
of the segment revenue. Segment profit was approximately
RMB82,813,000 (2021: N/A)

DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to declare the final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERBNwR DM

PROSPECT

Our Business Strategies and Future Prospects

As we enter 2023, our Group is striving to build resilience in a
time of uncertainty.

The economic outlook remains uncertain in 2023. Global
economies will continue to face multiple macroeconomic
headwinds, including geopolitical uncertainties, inflation and
tightened financial conditions. Many industries are still plagued
by supply chain issues that emerged in recent years. Ongoing
inflation and subdued economic growth are expected. In order
to combat this, our Group aims to improve our resilience in
through strategic management, development and expansion
of our two core businesses as well as building protective
measures into supply chains to deal with shortages and rising
business costs.

Following the pace of the development of our businesses last
year, we will diversify the product and market segmentation
for the Chinese Liquor Business, such as launching sizeable
advertising campaigns across different districts in the PRC and
setting up ancient-Chinese-style bistros in the PRC. For the
Faux Leather Chemical Business, we will further invest in and
upgrade the automation system in production to improve the
production efficiency, safety and environmental level. Through
research and development and additional production facilities,
we continue to improve our product quality and increase our
product competitiveness.

Meanwhile, the Group will continue to monitor the
development of economic turmoil in overseas and take
proactive measures if other external factors arise from
geopolitical risk. Through the implementation of strategies
as mentioned above, we strives to map out our entire supply
chains and identify any exposure to supply and inflation risks.

We foresee that the gradual recovery of the global economy
will bring new opportunities to our businesses. We will actively
assess its impact on the financial position and operating
results of the Group from time to time, while maintaining our
primary focus on minimizing the impact. As we hope for a
year of reduced conflict and increased stability in 2023, we
are committed to looking for opportunities to expand the
business scope and broaden the income stream of the Group.
By investing strategically and partnering where appropriate,
we are confident that we will continue to create long-term,
sustainable value for all stakeholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s current assets were
approximately RMB307,921,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB194,073,000), mainly comprising cash and bank balances
(including pledged bank deposits), inventories, trade and
bills receivables, prepayments, deposits and other receivables
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The
Group’s current liabilities were approximately RMB95,585,000
(31 December 2021: RMB43,048,000). The current ratio
(the ratio of current assets to current liabilities) decreased
from approximately 4.51 times as at 31 December 2021 to
approximately 3.22 times as at 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, bank borrowings were approximately
RMB10,000,000 (31 December 2021: Nil) which carried fixed
rate and denominated in RMB.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio is the ratio of net debt divided by total
equity. Net debt is calculated as total debt net of cash and cash
equivalents. As at 31 December 2022, the Group recorded a
net cash position (31 December 2021: the Group recorded a
net cash position) and hence, no gearing ratio is computed for
the end of the Year.

Capital expenses

During the Year, the Group’'s capital expenditure was
approximately RMB27,593,000, representing an decrease of
RMB7,701,000 as compared to that of RMB35,294,000 in the
Prior Year. Capital expenditure relates primarily to the purchase
of plant and equipment.

Capital Commitments

The capital commitments not provided for in the condensed
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2022
was RMB1,044,000 (31 December 2021: RMB7,213,000),
which represented the purchase of plant and machinery and
automation transformation contracts.

Capital structure

The number of issued ordinary shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) as at 31 December 2022 was 1,440,000,000 Shares
(31 December 2021: 1,200,000,000 Shares).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERBNwR DM

Placing of new shares under general mandate on 29
August 2022

On 28 June 2022, the Company and a placing agent (the
“Placing Agent”) entered into a placing agreement pursuant
to which the Placing Agent conditionally agreed to place, on a
best effort basis, an aggregate of 240,000,000 placing shares
(the “Placing Shares”) at HK$0.18 per Placing Share to not
less than six share placees (the “Share Placees”) under the
general mandate (the “Placing”). The placing price of the
Placing Shares was approximately a discount of 9.55% to the
closing price of the Shares of HK$0.199 per Share as quoted
on the Stock Exchange on 28 June 2022. On 29 August 2022,
240,000,000 Placing Shares were allotted and issued by the
Company to the Share Placees who are independent third
parties.

The net proceeds from the Placing was approximately
HK$42,580,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB36,948,000)
or at the net price of approximately HK$0.177 per Share.
The Company intends to apply the net proceeds from the
Placing to the business development of the Chinese Liquor
Business as to (i) approximately HK$10,000,000 for launching
similar Chinese baijiu products tasting and recommendation
events in different districts in the PRC in the upcoming twelve
months for expanding its customer base and sales network;
(i) approximately HK$11,290,000 for the procurement of raw
materials to manufacture the Group’s Chinese baijiu products;
and (iii) approximately HK$21,290,000 for general working
capital of the Group.

Details of the Placing were set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 28 June 2022, 18 July 2022, 27 July 2022,
5 August 2022, 24 August 2022 and 29 August 2022.

As at the date of this report, (i) & (ii) as abovementioned
have been utilized for the business development of the
Chinese Liquor Business as intended; and approximately
HK$19,590,000 has been utilized for the general
working capital of the Group including (a) approximately
HK$11,290,000 for staff cost; (b) approximately HK$5,000,000
for selling and distribution expenses; and (c) approximately
HK$3,300,000 for other office overhead and general corporate
purposes. The remaining unutilised proceeds of approximately
HK$1,700,000 will be utilized as intended by 31 August 2023.
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INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had invested in the
shares of companies listed on the Stock Exchange with
a total carrying amount of approximately RMB7,763,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$8,690,000) (31 December
2021: RMB36,262,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$44,492,000)). The Board considers any single investment
with fair value accounting for more than 5% of the total assets
of the Group as a significant investment. As the Group did not
have any single investment accounting for 5% or more of the
total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2022, the Group
did not have any significant investments as at 31 December
2022.

The portfolio of equity investments as at 31 December 2022
are set out as follows.

Unrealised fair
value loss as at as at

RE

R2022F12A31H AEBRE R
FrEmRARKRD LEEENAEARE
7,763,0007T (1H & R #78,690,000/% 7T )
(2021128318 : AR #36,262,0007T
(HEENK44,492,00087T) )  BEEE
AFELNAEERBEEESRIALLNEERE
BRIEEBRIEE - AR AN EER2022F121
STHYEBEREBREES %I EME
SRE WAEBER2022412A318 L &
FREKREE -

R2022F 12 A3 B REREHASWT

Percentage of
fair value of the
investment in
listed securities/
total assets of
the Group as at

Fair value of the
investment in
listed securities

Investment 31 December 31 December 31 December
cost 2022 2022 2022
R20226
#2022 R2022F 12A31A L7
12A318 12A3182 EEREDY
ZARBE LWRFEREZ BEEEE
REME AFEBE AVE BEERDL

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFL ARBEFL ARBEFL

Financial assets at fair value AL ETAEEZ

through profit or loss SREE 23,425 (15,662) 7,763 1.74%

FIBEERERAT —Bo-FFR
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During the Reporting Period, details of the performance of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are as follows:

RESEA - BAFEIABSZ & RE
EZRBEBENT

Realised fair ~ Unrealised fair Dividend

value loss for the value loss for the  received during

year ended year ended  the year ended

31 December 31 December 31 December

2022 2022 2022

BZ2022% BZ2022F BZz2022%

12A31BLEEZ 12A31HLEEZ  12B3MHLEE

Description of investments REHL CERAVLEFE RERLATEFE WE 2 B 2
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT ARETT ARETT

Listed securities in Hong Kong 8 mES (10,416) (10,585) -

In view of the recent volatility in the securities market, the
Directors expect the stock market will remain volatile in the
coming year and the Group will continue to adopt the cautious
approach in making investment decision in securities trading so
as to obtain a balance between risk and return.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any
significant investments, material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and capital assets during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, we did not record any material hire
purchase commitments, contingent liabilities, guarantees or
litigations against us.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK AND MANAGEMENT

The Group’s sales and purchases are mainly denominated
in RMB. The Group retains some of its foreign currency
denominated funds, which are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. Fluctuations in exchange rates have an impact on
the foreign currency reserve and the Company is exploring and
discussing measures to cope with the foreign exchange risk.
As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not enter into any
financial instruments to hedge foreign exchange.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 200 (2021:
180) employees. The Group offers its employees competitive
remuneration packages based on industry practices and
performance of individual employees. Year-end discretionary
bonuses may be granted to reward and motivate those well-
performed employees.

The Group provides employee benefits in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations. As required by the PRC laws and
regulations, the Group participates in various employee social
security plans for our employees that are administered by local
governments, including housing, pension, medical insurance,
maternity insurance and unemployment insurance. The Group
believes that it maintains a good working relationship with its
employees. The employees in Hong Kong are members of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme of Hong Kong.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the Reporting Period, the
Company proposed to (i) implement a share consolidation,
pursuant to which every five (5) issued and unissued
Shares of US$0.0005 each will be consolidated into one
(1) consolidated Share of US$0.0025 each (the “Share
Consolidation”); (ii) increase the authorised share capital of
the Company from US$1,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000
Shares to US$5,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000
Shares (or 2,000,000,000 consolidated Shares upon the
Share Consolidation becoming effective) (the “Increase in
Authorised Share Capital”); and (iii) subject to the Share
Consolidation and the Increase in Authorised Share Capital
having become effective, conduct a rights issue on the
basis of three (3) rights Shares (“Rights Shares”) for every
two (2) consolidated Shares held on the Record Date at the
subscription price of HK$0.67 per Rights Share, to raise up to
approximately HK$289,440,000 before expenses by way of
issuing up to 432,000,000 Rights Shares (the “Rights Issue”).

AHDER

MR2022F12A8318  REB KL HF20085
(20215 : 180% ) BB - AEBAERITEIE
PIkEREENKIAAEEBREARE N
M EF B I e R FREVBIELIA
B RABERREENES -

AEERBHEBEAERAOEEIER S
oA BARLERRE AKER
BN EEZ2EZEM T BRFEENEE
HEREFTE BRERS BT BER
2 EBERBREERR - AEERRHE
BERFRENTIIEAE - BERENDA
BEBHIMEABEEENKE -

AIFEHRER

RMEBKRE ARAREZODEEBRSD A
B BUEERAGKREETERRETERE
H0.0005E Lzt E&HE—(NKS
i EfE0.0025F 2 &R ([RBE
BE1) 5 (DB ARRR) Z/EERZAHT,000,000
% 7t (5 /A2,000,000,0000% A% 5 ) & 10 =
5,000,000 7t ( 43 &10,000,000,000% A%
7)) (SEFR% 19 & B £ 8 1£2,000,000,000
A GFRE ) ([EMEERAK]) @ (i)EF
A& 1D & OF I8 A TR AR £ 8% - IR RS
HEHHEREMQRE RN ERE=(3)
REE ARG (TR BRG] ) 2 EEURE
BERHERRMD0.67B TEITHI Ei@
217 £ %432,000,0000% 4 i% A% 17 & & &
%#289,440,0007%8 7T (BRI AT) ([
1) -
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On 3 March 2023, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) with a placing agent
(the “Placing Agent”), pursuant to which the Company
conditionally appointed the Placing Agent and the Placing
Agent conditionally agreement to act as the placing agent
for the Company to procure, on a best effort basis, places to
subscribe for the Shares not taken up during the Rights Issue
and/or the Rights Shares which would otherwise have been
provisionally allotted to the non-qualifying Shareholders in
nil-paid form that have not been sold to the Company, on
the terms and subject to the conditions set out in the Placing
Agreement (the “Placing”). Under the terms of the Placing
Agreement, if all the rights Shares are already full taken up in
the Rights Issue, the Placing will not proceed.

The Share Consolidation, the Increase in Authorised Share
Capital, the Rights Issue and the Placing are conditional upon,
among other things, approval by the Shareholders at an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 3 March 2023.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
significant event which had a material effect on the Group
subsequent to 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report.

USES OF PROCEEDS FROM THE INITIAL
PUBLIC OFFERING ON 12 MARCH 2020 (THE
“INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING")

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 12 March 2020. Net proceeds from
the Initial Public Offering were approximately RMB72.4 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$84.7 million). The intended
uses of the proceeds from the Initial Public Offering were set
out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
in the prospectus of the Company dated 27 February 2020
(the “Prospectus”).
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As at 31 December 2022, the Company utilised the total of
approximately RMB72.4 million for the purposes as listed

below.

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENB®R DM

Use of proceeds
in the same
manner and

proportion as
stated in the

Actual use of
proceeds as at 31

HE2022F12A8318 AR Al e AEH
MARBRABBTTHR THAS-

Net proceeds
unutilised as at
31 December

Prospectus  December 2022 2022

BRERML 20225 R2022F

BEARRLA® 12A318 /% 12A31BX8A

Intended uses of proceeds FRERERRE FrERBERE NEERAR FIERERE

RMB million RMB million RMB million

ARBEEETL ARBEETL AREBETL

Establishment of New Production Plant  EZEH4EHE 433 433 -
Enhancing automation system of our BIERMBEERELERED

existing Jiande Production Plant EENES 11.9 11.9 -

Strengthening our research and 1B s B FIR  3 e

development capabilities 15.8 15.8 -

General working capital —REEES 1.4 1.4 -

72.4 72.4 -

All the proceeds of approximately RMB72.4 million have been DEFFEHBEBNAREI AR ETE L

used in the same manner and proportions as set out in the
section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the

Prospectus.

FIERERARDA
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FHRRTARLLLPIERES A -

SR

17



18

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

ESREREEERBRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Hua (PREZEZ%4), aged 49, is an executive
Director, also an executive director and general manager of
Zhejiang Sunlight. Mr. Chen is responsible for overseeing our
day-to-day management and business operation, formulating
business strategies and making major operational decisions of
our Group.

Mr. Chen was awarded a bachelor’s degree in mechanical
engineering from Zhejiang University (#T/ZK2) of the
PRC in June 1995. He was awarded the qualification of
senior economist* (=&AL ERD) by the Zhejiang Province
Economic Series Advanced Professional Technical Positions

Employment Qualification Review Committee* (7T 4<%
RIS RBERMBBEBRERTELZEE) in December

2018. Mr. Chen has been engaged in the chemical engineering
industry for more than 20 years. From January 2000 to May
2006, Mr. Chen was employed by Hangzhou Rainbow Colour
Paste Co., Ltd.* (#UINELEHEER A F]), a manufacturer of
colourants, resins, finishes and additives for synthetic leather
and textiles, as a general manager. Mr. Chen joined Zhejiang
Sunlight in July 2006 and took up positions as a director and
the general manager. Mr. Chen was also the general manager
of Huzhou Milan Investment Management Co., Ltd.* (J#
MAKEREEEABRAR) (formerly known as Hangzhou
Sunlight Chemical Co., Ltd.* (M FENLTERAT))
("Huzhou Milan”), a then manufacturer of chemical products,
from January 2005 to July 2006, responsible for its overall
management and formulation of business strategies, and was
its supervisor from November 2007 to July 2010, respectively.

*  For identification purpose only
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ESEREREEEBE

Mr. Lam Kam Kong Nathaniel (##83t), aged 30, was
appointed as executive Director on 25 May 2022. Mr. Lam
received his degree of Bachelor of Commerce (Finance and
Marketing) from University of Auckland in 2020. He has
extensive experience in equity capital market especially in
securities brokerage operations, securities financing and equity
dealings with other financial institutions. Mr. Lam has worked
in several brokerage firms in Hong Kong since 2016. From
August 2016 to November 2020, Mr. Lam was an associate
and a licensed representative for Type 1 (Dealing in securities)
regulated activity under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO") of
Hooray Securities Limited. From November 2020 to January
2022, Mr. Lam worked for OnePlatform Securities Limited and
was a licensed representative for Type 1 (Dealing in securities)
regulated activity under the SFO during May 2021 to January
2022. From February 2022 to November 2022, Mr. Lam was
employed by OnePlatform Asset Management Limited and
was responsible for anti-money laundering and know your
customer due diligence work during his employment. Mr.
Lam is currently a licensed representative for Type 9 (Asset
management) regulated activities under the SFO of Anli Asset
Management Limited.

Mr. Tse Chun Chung (##ZEH), aged 43, was appointed
as executive Director on 25 May 2022. Mr. Tse obtained
a bachelor's degree in economics from the University of
California, Irvine in 2004 and has over 16 years of experience
in retail banking. From July 2014 to February 2016, Mr. Tse
was a senior relationship manager at China Construction Bank.
Mr. Tse was also the relationship manager of Dah Sing Bank
and Nanyang Commercial Bank from February 2016 to April
2018 and from August 2019 to March 2021, respectively.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

ESREREEERBRE

Mr. Sun Jingang (#&Ml), aged 56, was appointed
as executive Director on 25 May 2022. The operation of
the Chinese Liquor Business is currently managed by a
management team led by Mr. Sun. The composition of the
management team consists of experience professionals in
sales and market, business management, operation and
management of production plant and alcohol-related research
and technology, quality management and wine tasting. Mr.
Sun has over 10 years in company promotion and company
brand planning. From January 2010 to December 2018, Mr.
Sun was the general manager of Weishan Qiandao Lake
Wetland Scenic Spot* (#ILF &M EHFE) and was
mainly responsible for the development of the scenic spot. Mr.
Sun is currently the general manager of Jiangsu Huazhikang
Health Technology Group Co., Ltd.* (L& 2 2 FERHE S

EABMRAF) and Jiangsu Hengyangkang Health Technology
Co., Ltd.* (I&REERERBHEBERAF) since November

2019 and since February 2021 respectively. From April 2021 to
23 May 2022, Mr. Sun was the director of Xuzhou Yuandao
Health Technology Co., Ltd.* (fR/NTTBEREERIZAR AR .

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Au Hei Ching (BEfE¥E%4%), aged 38, was appointed
as independent non-executive Director on 25 January 2022.
Mr. Au obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration
(Honours) in Business Economics from the City University of
Hong Kong and has over 15 years of experience in finance
and asset management. Mr. Au has been a financial risk
manager of the Global Association of Risk Professionals
since 2011. From October 2007 to August 2010, Mr. Au
worked as principal business development officer at a bank
in Hong Kong. Since October 2010, Mr. Au has worked as
SFC licensed representative and responsible officer in various
licensed corporations. He has extensive experience in asset
management, advising on risk management strategies,
supervising daily securities brokerage operations and providing
advisory services to investors.

Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen ({5 R%4%), aged 46, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director in
February 2020. Mr. Ho received a MBA degree from the
University of Chicago Booth School of Business, a Master
of Science degree in financial economics from University
of London and a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in
accountancy from City University of Hong Kong. He is currently
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Ho is currently an independent non-executive director
of Stream Ideas Group Limited (stock code: 8401). Mr.
Ho is the chief financial officer and company secretary of
Tianyun International Holdings Limited (stock code: 6836),
since February 2015. Prior to that, Mr. Ho was the chief
financial officer of Tuenbo Group Limited and held various
senior positions in Wisdom Asset Management Limited,
Hermes Capital Limited and Evolution Group Limited (now
known as Investec Group) specialized in asset management,
private equity, and corporate finance. Mr. Ho also worked
for PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong, KPMG UK and
Grant Thornton Corporate Finance UK from 1998 to 2006
specialising in audit, advisory and corporate finance.

Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace (ZE#HBiskt4), aged 41,
was appointed as independent non-executive Director on 25
January 2022. He obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Commerce
(Accounting) from the University of Queensland, Australia
and has over 18 years of experience in financial reporting,
investment analysis, merger & acquisition exercises and business
development. He has been a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants since 2009 and a fellow
member since 2014. From November 2017 to June 2020, he
was an independent non-executive director of Chuan Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1420), the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. From February 2020 to
December 2022, he was an independent non-executive director
of Asia Television Holdings Limited (stock code: 707), the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-executive director of
Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited (stock code: 1188) and Li Bao
Ge Group Limited (stock code: 1869), the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Kirin Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8109) (“Kirin Group”), the shares of which
are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Zheng Yu (EBF5E4), aged 44, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director on 25 January 2022. He
obtained a bachelor's degree in law from Nanjing University
and has over 20 years of experience in the legal profession. He
obtained the PRC Legal Professional Qualification Certificate
in 2002 and has been a practising lawyer at Jiangsu Phaedo
Law Firm since 2003, currently holding the position of senior
partner. Mr. Zheng is also an arbitrator on the panel of the
Nanjing Arbitration Commission of the JiangSu (NanJing)
International Arbitration Centre and an arbitrator on the panel
of Taizhou Arbitration Commission.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

ESREREEERBRE

Ms. Zhou Xiaochun (B®&&FZ <L), aged 65, was appointed
as independent non-executive Director on 25 January 2022.
She has over 42 years of experience in alcohol-related research
and technology, product and quality management. Since 1980,
Ms. Zhou has been engaged in wine-related professional
technology work at Jiangxi Jinggang Winery Industry Co.,
Ltd.* OIFAHMBEXBREMTZAF), where she currently
holds the position of chief engineer. Ms. Zhou was accredited
as a senior engineer in the field of chemistry by the Jiangxi
Occupational Titles Reform Work Leading Group* (T
ERLFEENESEE/NH)  in November 2000. In March 2012,
she obtained the Occupational Qualification Certificate in
wine tasting. From November 2016 to November 2021, Ms.
Zhou was a panelist of the 9th National Baijiu Spirit Panel
of the China National Food Industry Association. She was
also a national occupational skills appraisal senior examiner
for winemakers and sommeliers between October 2018 and
October 2021. In September 2020, Ms. Zhou was appointed
as the team leader of the Jiangxi Province 12th Chinese Baijiu
Expert Panel* (I E+_EBABEXRM) by the Jiangxi
Food Industry Association.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES OF THE
COMPANY

Mr. Chan Ming Kei (BR#E%4), aged 40, obtained
a Bachelor of Business Administration (Hons) majoring in
Accounting from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in 2005. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has extensive
experiences in accounting, audit, financial management and
company secretarial works.

Mr. Lui Chi Ho (BEZ %), aged 50, was appointed as
one of the joint company secretaries of our Company in April
2019. Mr. Lui is a partner of INCE & CO, a law firm in Hong
Kong. Mr. Lui has been admitted as a solicitor to the High
Court of Hong Kong since 1999. He was also admitted as a
solicitor to the Supreme Court of England and Wales in 2004.
Mr. Lui is @ member of The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators
and is an accredited mediator of Hong Kong International
Arbitration Centre. Mr. Lui is also a China Appointed Attesting
Officer, a member of the Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal Panel
and the chairman of the Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings).

*  For identification purpose only
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The Board is pleased to present its annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the Reporting Period. Certain information set out in this annual
report are disclosed up to the date of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities and other details of the subsidiaries
of the Company are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements. Pursuant to the requirements of
Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”),
further discussion and analysis of the principal activities of
the Group (including the business review of the Group and
the description of the potential business development of the
Group) are set out in the management discussion and analysis
of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note
17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Business Risks and Uncertainties

The Group's principal business activity is the manufacturing
and sales of faux leather chemicals and Chinese liquor,
whose principal risks include the quality of the products
and the security during production. The Group has taken
comprehensive measures to ensure that both quality and
security will meet the industry standards. The fluctuation of
the development of the industry has resulted in a significant
impact on the Group’s business in the Reporting Period. Please
refer to the Statement from the Board of Directors for further
discussion on the business risks we face and how we manage
such risks.

Financial Risks

The Group’s main risks arising from its financial instruments are
interest rate and exchange rate risks, equity price risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. Details of the financial risk management
objectives and policies are set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Tax concession

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding the
securities of the Company.
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Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of
the environment and the development of the society.

Details of the Group’'s development, performance and
operation in the environmental aspect are set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group has adopted internal control and risk management
policies to monitor the on-going compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations. As far as the Board is concerned,
the Group had complied in all material aspects with the
applicable laws and regulations in the PRC, and did not have
any incidents of material non-compliance, and the Group
had obtained all relevant permits, approval documents,
qualifications, authorizations and approvals material to our
business operations.

Overall compliance

As at the date of this annual report, save as disclosed above,
there are no material pending or threatened litigation matters
or other proceedings involving the Group, and the Group is
not involved in any litigation or other proceedings that we
believe would materially and adversely affect our business,
financial condition or results of operation.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's top five customers accounted for approximately
32.9% (2021: approximately 37.0%) of the total sales and the
top five suppliers accounted for approximately 51.92% (2021:
approximately 23.6%) of its total purchases for Reporting
Period. In addition, the Group’s largest customer accounted
for approximately 6.85% (2021: approximately 12.7%) of
the total sales and the Group's largest supplier accounted for
approximately 39.9% (2021: approximately 6.1%) of the total
purchases for Reporting Period.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, at no time during
the Reporting Period, have the Directors, their associates or
any shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors own more than 5% of the share capital of
the Company) had any interest in these major customers and
suppliers.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group is in good relationship with its employees and
also has policies in place to ensure competitive remuneration,
well-developed welfare package and continuous professional
training for its employees. The Group also maintains a good
relationship with its customers and suppliers, without whom its
production and operation may be impaired.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the movements in the Company’s reserves during
the Reporting Period are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had distributable
reserves amounting to RMB98,770,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB92,415,000).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donation for charitable purposes of approximately
RMB418,000 were made by the Group during the Reporting
Period (31 December 2021: RMB1,025,000).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the Reporting Period of the Group
are set out in the paragraph headed “Events Subsequent to
Reporting Period” in this annual report and note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial periods is set out on page 178
of this Annual Report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Reporting Period.
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Pre-emptive right

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated.

DIVIDENDS AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has resolved not to declare the final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022. Policy on payment of
dividend of the Company is in place setting out the factors in
determination of dividend payment of the Company, including
the Group’s actual and expected financial performance,
shareholders’ interests, retained earnings and distributable
reserves of the Company and each of the other members
of the Group, the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio,
return on equity and financial covenants to which the Group
is subject, possible effects on the Group’s creditworthiness,
any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group’s lenders, the Group expected working capital
requirements and future expansion plans, liquidity position and
future commitments at the time of declaration of dividend,
taxation considerations, statutory and regulatory restrictions,
general business conditions and strategies, general economic
conditions, business cycle of the Group's business and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and position of the
Company; and other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
The policy shall be reviewed periodically and submitted to the
Board for approval if amendments are required.

Directors’ service contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the listing date of the Shares on 12 March
2020 (the “Listing Date”) or his/her respective date of
appointment which was later than the Listing Date, which
may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other and is subject to
termination provisions therein and provisions on retirement
by rotation of the Directors as set out in the Articles of
Association.
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Remuneration of Directors and senior management

Each of our executive Directors is entitled to a director’s fee.
Each of our executive Directors shall be paid a remuneration
on the basis of twelve months in a year. In addition, each of
our executive Directors is also entitled to bonus as determined
by the Board based on the recommendations made by our
Remuneration Committee. The current annual director’s fees
and remuneration of our executive Directors are set out in note
13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Each of our independent non-executive Directors has entered
into an appointment letter with our Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date or
for an initial term of one year if his/her respective date of
appointment was later than the Listing Date and is entitled to
a director’s fee of HK$120,000 per annum.

In the year ended 2022, each of the executive Directors did not
receive a director’s fee.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (AND THEIR
CONNECTED ENTITIES) IN MATERIAL
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the Company, its holding companies, or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report, none of the Directors or their respective close
associates as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) has
any interest in any business which competes, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group under the Listing
Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which had been notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions in which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required
to be maintained pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, are set out as
follows:
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percentage of
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Notes:

(1) As at 31 December 2022, Sunlight Global Investment Limited
(“Sunlight Global”) and Lilian Global Investment Limited (“Lilian
Global”) held approximately 1.25% and approximately 0.83%,
respectively, of the total issued share capital of the Company.
Sunlight Global is owned as to 61.20% by Mr. Chen Hua,
13.24% by Ms. Zhu Jiangin, 13.24% by Mr. Li Xiangyu, 9.24%
by Mr. He Zhangcai, 2.14% by Mr. Chen Yong, 0.54% by Mr.
Cai Jianming and 0.40% by Mr. Zhao Xuesheng. Lilian Global is
wholly-owned by Ms. Liu Jing. Ms. Liu is therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares in which Lilian Global is interested under
the SFO. Mr. Chen Hua, Ms. Liu Jing, Ms. Zhu Jiangin, Mr. Li
Xiangyu, Mr. He Zhangcai, Mr. Zhao Xuesheng, Mr. Cai Jianming
and Mr. Chen Yong are entitled to exercise or control the
exercise of approximately 2.08% of the voting power at general
meetings of our Company through exercising or controlling
the exercise of the entire voting power at general meetings
of Sunlight Global and Lilian Global, and therefore they are
deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Sunlight Global
and Lilian Global are interested under the SFO.

(2)  Mr. Chen Hua and Ms. Liu Jing are spouses to each other.
Therefore, each of them is deemed to be interested in the
Shares in which he or she is interested under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions in which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were recorded in the register required to be maintained
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
Reporting Period was the Company or its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
Directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18 were
granted any right to subscribe for the share capital or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate, or had
exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

To the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at
31 December 2022, the following persons (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) have the
following interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were required pursuant to section 336
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Number of Long/short in the
Name Capacity/Nature of interest Shares position Company
HARRRE
=L 5/ ERtE gy 4= Be/ %R ZBHEIR
Ms. Zheng Xiuyue Beneficial Owner 260,000,000 Long position 18.06%

B FE AL+ EnEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, to the
knowledge of the Directors, none of any other person (other
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) had
any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which were required to be disclosed
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or to be
recorded in the register referred to in section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
the Eligible Participants (as defined below) had or may have
made to our Group. The Share Option Scheme will provide the
Eligible Participants an opportunity to have a personal stake
in our Company with the view to achieving the following
objectives: (i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise
their performance efficiency for the benefit of our Group; (ii)
attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going business
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the long term growth of our Group;
and (iii) for such purposes as our Board may approve from time
to time.

Who may join

Our Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe for such number of new Shares as our Board may
determine at an exercise price determined in accordance with
paragraph headed “Subscription price” below to the following
(the "Eligible Participants”):

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of our Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive directors) of our Company or
any of its subsidiaries; and

(iii) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers, agents
and related entities to our Company or any of its
subsidiaries.
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Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and under
any other share option schemes of our Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
immediately following completion of the Global Offering,
being 100,000,000 Shares, excluding for this purpose Shares
which would have been issuable pursuant to the options which
have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme (or any other share option schemes of our Company).
Subject to the issue of a circular by our Company and the
approval of our Shareholders in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time, our Board may:

(i)  renew this limit at any time to 10% of the Shares in issue
as of the date of the approval by our Shareholders in
general meeting; and/or

(i) grant options beyond the 10% limit to Eligible
Participants specifically identified by our Board. The
circular issued by our Company to our Shareholders shall
contain a generic description of the specified Eligible
Participants who may be granted such options, the
number and terms of the options to be granted, the
purpose of granting options to the specified Eligible
Participants with an explanation as to how the options
serve such purpose, the information required under
Rule 17.02(2)(d) and the disclaimer required under Rule
17.02(4) of the Listing Rules.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of our Company at any time shall
not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
options shall be granted under any schemes of our Company
(including the Share Option Scheme) if this will result in the
30% limit being exceeded. The maximum number of Shares in
respect of which options may be granted shall be adjusted, in
such manner as the auditors of our Company or an approved
independent financial adviser shall certify to be appropriate,
fair and reasonable in the event of any alteration in the capital
structure of our Company in accordance with paragraph (q)
below whether by way of consolidation, capitalisation issue,
rights issue, sub-division or reduction of the share capital of
our Company but in no event shall exceed the limit prescribed
in this paragraph.
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Maximum number of options for each participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of our
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to each Eligible Participant in any 12-month period up to the
date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as of
the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to:

(i)

(ii)

the issue of a circular by our Company containing the
identity of the Eligible Participant, the numbers of
and terms of the options to be granted (and options
previously granted to such participant) the information
as required under Rules 17.03(4) and 17.06 of the Listing
Rules and/or such other requirements as prescribed under
the Listing Rules from time to time; and

the approval of our Shareholders in general meeting and/
or other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules
from time to time with such Eligible Participant and his
close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) (or his
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) if the Eligible
Participant is a Connected Person) abstaining from
voting. The numbers and terms (including the exercise
price) of options to be granted to such participant must
be fixed before our Shareholders’ approval and the date
of our Board meeting at which our Board proposes to
grant the options to such Eligible Participant shall be
taken as the date of grant for the purpose of calculating
the subscription price of the Shares. Our Board shall
forward to such Eligible Participant an offer document in
such form as our Board may from time to time determine.
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Grant of options to connected persons

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of our Company or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is required to be approved by
the independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of
the options). If our Board proposes to grant options to a
substantial shareholder or any independent nonexecutive
Director or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) which will result in the number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of options granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to
such person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% or such other
percentage as may be from time to time provided under
the Listing Rules of the Shares in issue;

(i) having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million or
such other sum as may be from time to time provided
under the Listing Rules, based on the official closing price
of the Shares at the date of each grant, such further
grant of options will be subject to the issue of a circular
by our Company and the approval of our Shareholders
in general meeting on a poll at which the grantee, his/
her associates and all core connected persons (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of our Company shall abstain
from voting in favour, and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time. Any
vote taken at the meeting to approve the grant of such
options shall be taken as a poll.

The circular to be issued by our Company to our Shareholders
pursuant to the above paragraph shall contain the following
information:

(i)  the details of the number and terms (including the
exercise price) of the options to be granted to each
selected Eligible Participant which must be fixed before
our Shareholders’ meeting and the date of Board meeting
for proposing such further grant shall be taken as the
date of grant for the purpose of calculating the exercise
price of such options;
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(i) a recommendation from the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding any independent non-executive
Director who is the grantee of the options) to the
independent shareholders as to voting;

(iii) the information required under Rule 17.02(2)(c) and (d)
and the disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the
Listing Rules; and

(iv) the information required under Rule 2.17 of the Listing
Rules.

Performance targets and vesting conditions

A grantee may be required to achieve any performance targets
as our Board may then specify in the grant before any options
granted under the Share Option Scheme can be exercised.

Subscription price

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as our Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of:

(i)  the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of
grant, which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange
is open for the business of dealing in securities;

(i) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and

(iii)  the nominal value of a Share.

Term of the Share Option Scheme

An option is personal to the grantee and may be exercised or
treated as exercised, as the case may be, in whole or in part.
No grantee shall in any way sell, transfer, charge, mortgage,
encumber or create any interest (legal or beneficial) in favour
of any third party over or in relation to any option or attempt
so to do (save that the grantee may nominate a nominee in
whose name the Shares issued pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme may be registered). Any breach of the foregoing shall
entitle our Company to cancel any outstanding options or any
part thereof granted to such grantee.
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Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to our Company by way of consideration for the grant. Any
offer to grant an option to subscribe for Shares may be
accepted in respect of less than the number of Shares for
which it is offered provided that it is accepted in respect of
a board lot of dealing in Shares on the Stock Exchange or an
integral multiple thereof and such number is clearly stated in
the duplicate offer document constituting the acceptance of
the option. To the extent that the offer to grant an option is
not accepted by any prescribed acceptance date, it shall be
deemed to have been irrevocably declined.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon
which the Option is deemed to be granted and accepted and
prior to the expiry of 10 years from that date. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be determined
by our Board in its absolute discretion, save that no option may
be exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted. No
option may be granted more than 10 years after the Listing
Date. Subject to earlier termination by our Company in general
meeting or by our Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the Listing
Date.

No share option has been granted by our Company and no
share options were outstanding, lapsed, cancelled or exercised
under the share option scheme during the Reporting Period.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions disclosed in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements constitute connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The transaction is fully exempt if all the percentage
ratios (other than the profits ratio) are less than 5% and the
total consideration is less than HK$3,000,000. The Company
has confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for these
transactions.
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RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present values.

Annual contributions to retirement benefit schemes operated
by the government in the PRC are recognised in the profit or
loss as and when incurred.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining high level of
corporate governance practices. Information about the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report in this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Company was not aware of
any non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations
that had a significant impact on it.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required by
the Listing Rules and at least 25% of the Company’s entire
issued share capital were held by the public from the Listing
Date and up to the date of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against the Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in
force for the benefit of the Directors (including any director(s)
resigned during the Reporting Period) as required by section
470 of the Companies Ordinance when the Directors’ Report
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company has not entered into any contract with any
individual, firm or body corporate to manage or administer the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company
during the year under review.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
of the Company these annual results and the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
auditing, risk management, internal control and financial
statements matters, including the review of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022.

AUDITOR

KTC Partners CPA Limited (“"KTC") was appointed as auditor of
the Company following the resignation of HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited (“HLB") with effect from 15 December 2022
after taking into account as the Company and HLB could not
reach a consensus on the fees for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the financial year
ending 31 December 2022. HLB has confirmed that there are
no matters in connection with its resignation as the auditor
of the Company which need to be brought to the attention
of the shareholders of the Company. KTC has audited the
accompanying financial statements which were prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

KTC holds office until the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company. KTC is subject to retirement
and, being eligible, offers itself for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM. A resolution for re-appointment of KTC
Partners CPA Limited as auditor will be proposed at the AGM.

By Order of the Board
Lam Kam Kong Nathaniel
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as its own
corporate governance code. The Company is committed to
the establishment of good corporate governance practices
and procedures with a view to becoming a transparent and
responsible organisation which is open and accountable to the
Shareholders. The Board strives for adhering to the principles
of corporate governance and has adopted sound corporate
governance practices to meet the legal and commercial
standards, focusing on areas such as internal control, fair
disclosure and accountability to all Shareholders to ensure the
transparency and accountability of all operations of the Group.
The Company believes that effective corporate governance
is essential for creating greater value to its Shareholders. The
Board will continue to review and improve the corporate
governance practices of the Group from time to time to ensure
that the Group is led by an effective Board in order to optimise
return for Shareholders.

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report,
the Group has strictly complied with the CG Code with the
exception of the following deviations:

1. Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that
the roles of the chairman and chief executive should be
separate. Code Provisions C.2.2 to C.2.9 further stipulate
the various roles and responsibilities of the chairman.
The Company’s chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)
Ms. Liu Jing resigned with effect from 25 May 2022. No
replacement appointment of the Chairman was made
after Ms. Liu Jing’s resignation and the Company has not
had a Chairman since 25 May 2022. The Company will
publish an announcement once an appointment has been
made in accordance with the Listing Rules.

2. Code Provision C.6.3 of the CG Code stipulates that the
company secretary should report to the board chairman
and/or the chief executive. As the Company did not have
a Chairman or chief executive following the resignation
of Ms. Liu Jing, the joint company secretaries of the
Company have reported to the executive Directors since
25 May 2022.
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3. Code Provision F2.2 of the CG Code stipulates that the
chairman should attend the annual general meeting and
should also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and any other committees (as appropriate)
to attend. In their absence, the chairman should invite
another member of the committee or failing this their
duly appointed delegate, to attend. These persons should
be available to answer questions at the annual general
meeting. Ms. Liu Jing, as the Chairman and the chairman
of the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”), did not attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 24 May 2022.
However, Mr. Chen Hua, an executive Director, took the
chair of the meeting. The two members of the Nomination
Committee, Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen and Mr. Lee Cheung
Yuet Horace both attended the meeting and were
available to answer any questions and ensure effective
communication with the Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the required
standard for securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries of all Directors and all
Directors confirmed that during the year ended 31 December
2022, they had complied with the required standards set out in
the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Group, which includes establish the purpose, values and
strategy of the Company, establish leadership and control of
the Company and oversee the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions, internal control, risk management and performances.
The directors take decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company. Some functions including, inter alia, monitor and
approval of material transactions, matters involving conflict
of interest for a substantial shareholder or director(s) of the
Company, the approval of the interim and annual results, other
disclosures to the public or regulators and the internal control
system are reserved by the Board and the decisions relating
to such matters shall be subject to the decision of the Board.
Matters not specifically reserved to the Board and necessary
for the daily operations of the Company are delegated to the
management under the supervision of the respective Directors.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of nine
Directors, being four executive Directors and five independent
non-executive Directors. The Directors as at the date of this
annual report and the Directors who have served the Company
during the Reporting Period are set out as below.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Hua

Mr. Lam Kam Kong Nathaniel (Appointed on 25 May 2022)
Mr. Tse Chun Chung (Appointed on 25 May 2022)

Mr. Sun Jingang (Appointed on 25 May 2022)

Mr. Gu Jianguo (Resigned on 3 March 2023)

Ms. Liu Jing (Chairman) (Resigned on 25 May 2022)

Mr. Wen Yongwen (Resigned on 16 May 2022)

Ms. Zhu Jiangin (Resigned on 3 March 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Au Hei Ching (Appointed on 25 January 2022)

Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen

Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace (Appointed on 25 January 2022)
Mr. Zheng Yu (Appointed on 25 January 2022)

Ms. Zhou Xiaochun (Appointed on 25 January 2022)

Mr. Tian Jingyan (Resigned on 25 January 2022)

Ms. Yu Zhen (Resigned on 25 January 2022)

The biographies of the Directors and their relationship, if any,
are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report. The Company
reviews the composition of the Board from time to time, to
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills and experience
appropriate to the Company’s business, and the Board has
a strong independent element to safeguard the interests of
Shareholders.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, which may be terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either party on the other and is subject to termination
provisions therein and provisions on retirement by rotation of
the Directors as set out in the Articles of Association.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
one-third of the Directors (including executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) shall retire from office
by rotation. Pursuant to A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

As the 2021 annual general meeting of the Company was
convened on 24 May 2022 and the Directors were re-elected in
the meeting, the re-election of Directors for the year 2022 will
be proceeded in the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Group are clearly defined and segregated to ensure
independence and proper checks and balances. The chairman
focuses on the business strategy and direction of the Company
and has executive responsibilities, provides leadership for
the Board and ensures proper and effective functioning of
the Board in discharging of its responsibilities. The chief
executive officer is accountable to the Board for the overall
implementation of the Company's strategies and the co-
ordination of overall business operations.

Pursuant to Code Provision C.2.1, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Ms. Liu Jing served as the
chairman of the Board since the Listing Date and up to the 25
May 2022. No replacement appointment of the Chairman was
made after Ms. Liu Jing's resignation and the Company has
not had a Chairman since 25 May 2022. The position of chief
executive officer of the Company has remained vacant since
the Listing Date. The responsibilities of the chief executive
officer are taken up by Mr. Chen Hua, an executive Director. As
all major decisions are made in consultation with the members
of the Board, and there are five Independent Non-executive
Directors on the Board offering independent perspectives,
the Board is therefore of the view that there are adequate
safeguards in place to ensure sufficient balance of powers
within the Board.

TRAINING AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

Upon appointing a new Director, each new Director receives
an induction package covering business operations, policy and
procedures of the Company as well as the general, statutory
and regulatory obligations of being a Director to ensure that
he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities under the
Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.
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The Company also provides regular updates on the business
development of the Group. The Directors are regularly briefed
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance
and maintenance of good corporate governance practices. In
addition, the Company has been encouraging the Directors to
enroll in professional development courses and seminars relating
to the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance and corporate
governance practices organized by professional bodies or
chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors have confirmed that they
had complied with Code Provision C.1.4 during the Year by
attending seminars and briefings and reading relevant materials.

During the Reporting Period, all the Directors have participated
in appropriate continuous professional development and
refreshed their knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Such
professional development was completed by way of attending
briefings, conferences, courses, forums, seminars and lectures
which are relevant to the business or Directors’ duties, as well
as reading relevant information and participating in business-
related research.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board held 13
meetings.

The Directors can attend meetings in person or through other
means of electronic communication in accordance with the
Articles of Association. The company secretary of the Company
(the “Company Secretary”) assists the Chairman to prepare
the agenda of the meeting and each Director may request to
include any matters in the agenda. Generally, notice would
be given for a regular meeting of the Company at least 14
days in advance. The Directors will receive details of agenda
items for decision at least 3 days before each Board meeting.
The Company Secretary is responsible for distributing detailed
documents to each of the Directors prior to the meetings of the
Board to ensure that the Directors may receive accurate, timely
and clear information to make informed decisions regarding
the matters to be discussed in the meetings. All Directors may
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
who regularly updates the Board on governance and regulatory
matters. All Directors will also be provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties, and upon reasonable
request, the Directors will be able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense. The Company Secretary is also responsible
for ensuring the procedures of Board meetings are observed and
providing the Board with opinions on matters in relation to the
compliance with the procedures of Board meetings. All minutes
of Board meetings will be recorded in sufficient details, including
the matters considered by the Board and the decisions reached.
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The individual attendance records of each Director at the EEENMEAANEFAR RS ENME
various meetings of the Company during the Reporting Period B F e E S T
are set out below:

Annual Extraordinary

general general Audit Remuneration Nomination
meeting meeting Board  Committee  Committee ~ Committee
Name of Director - £3:8 RRBFAE RREHAE EZg ENZEE FHZRE REZRE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Chen Hua RELE 7 7 13/13 - 33 -
Mr. Lam Kam Kong'2 MR E - - 8/8 - - -
Mr. Sun Jingang2 Felxs" - - 88 - - -
Mr. Tse Chun Chung? HEPELE" - - 88 - - -
Mr. Gu Jianguo® BRELAH n n 12113 - - -
Ms. Liu Jing (Chairman)®® UFat(EFgTE)" o1 i 5/5 - - 33
Mr. Wen Yongwen2 B ER - N 33 - - -
Ms. Zhu Jiangin®™ REELLH 01 N 1213 - - -
Independent Non-Executive Directors BV #EH1TEE
Mr. Au Hei Ching"" BEELE" n n 12112 44 - -
Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen &R %% 11 11 13/13 44 - 33
Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace'" FEfingn 111 111 1212 4/4 20 20
Mr. Zheng Yu'" Lk n N 1212 44 - -
Ms. Zhou Xiaochun'" AkERL" 1 1 112 4/4 20 -
Mr. Tian Jingyan® REEEL" - - - - N -
Ms. Yu Zhen* BWERLH - - - - on -
M (appointed on 25 January 2022) M (202251 A25HEE 1)
" (appointed on 25 May 2022) "2 (720225 A25 B )
# (resigned on 25 January 2022) # (7202251 A258 B 1F)
# (resigned on 16 May 2022) #2 (202255816 8 B 1F)
" (resigned on 25 May 2022) = (3202245 5258 BHE)
#4 (resigned on 3 March 2023) # (F2023%3 838 &HT)
BOARD COMMITTEES EEgZEY

We have established the Audit Committee, Remuneration KPIER2020F2810BH K B E B
Committee and Nomination committee on 10 February 2020. @ HGMEEeNIELETES - FIl=@EZ
Each of the above three committees has written terms of SEeRE FTHHBi A mBESE -
reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The functions = EAZEEerBeefdmT

of the above three committees are summarised as follows:
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

We established the Audit Committee. During the Reporting
Period, the Audit Committee consists of Mr. Ho Ho Tung
Armen, Mr. Tian lJingyan, Ms. Yu Zhen, Mr. Au Hei Ching,
Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace, Mr. Zheng Yu and Ms. Zhou
Xiaochun and is chaired by Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen, who have
the appropriate professional qualifications required under the
Listing Rules. Mr. Tian Jingyan and Ms. Yu Zhen has ceased to
be members of the Audit Committee on 25 January 2022. Mr.
Au Hei Ching, Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace, Mr. Zheng Yu and
Ms. Zhou Xiaochun have been appointed as members of the
Audit Committee since 25 January 2022. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to assist our Board by providing
an independent view of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management
system of our Group, to oversee the audit process, to develop
and review our policies and to perform other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by our Board.

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report, the Audit Committee has performed its duties,
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system and
risk management of the Company, the Group Anti-Bribery and
Anti-Corruption Policy and the Group Whistleblowing Policy,
reviewed the terms of engagement of the external auditors
and the Group’s continuing connected transactions. The Audit
Committee has also reviewed with the management of the
Company the interim results of the Group for the six months
ended 30 June 2022 and also with the external auditor the
annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 and 2022, and was of the opinion that the preparation
of such results was in compliance with the relevant accounting
standards, rules and regulations and that adequate disclosures
have been made.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

We established the Remuneration Committee. During the
Reporting Period, The Remuneration Committee consists of
Mr. Tian Jingyan, Mr. Chen Hua, Ms. Yu Zhen, Mr. Lee Cheung
Yuet Horace and Ms. Zhou Xiaochun and is chaired by Mr.
Tian Jingyan. Mr. Tian Jingyan and Ms. Yu Zhen has ceased
to be the chairman and a member of the Remuneration
Committee respectively on 25 January 2022. Mr. Lee Cheung
Yuet Horace and Ms. Zhou Xiaochun have been appointed as
the chairman and a member of the Remuneration Committee,
respectively, since 25 January 2022. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendations
to our Board regarding our policy and structure for the
remuneration of all of our Directors and senior management.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
has discussed and reviewed the remuneration policies of
the Company, reviewed and made recommendations with
respect to the remuneration of Board members for approval
by the Board and made recommendations with respect to
the remuneration of the newly appointed Director during the
Reporting Period for approval by the Board. The Remuneration
Committee had formulated the remuneration policy for
Directors, approved the terms of service contracts of Directors
and devised the principle for the remuneration of executive
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022.

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
is determined on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence. The emoluments of the Directors are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance,
experience, responsibility, workload and time devoted to
the Company and comparable market statistics, for Board
approval. Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic
salary which is reviewed annually. In addition, each of the
executive Directors may receive a discretionary bonus as the
Remuneration Committee may recommend. Such amount has
to be approved by the Board.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments for the
Reporting Period are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

We established the Nomination Committee. During the
Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee consists of
Ms. Liu Jing, Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen, Mr. Tian Jingyan, Mr.
Lee Cheung Yuet Horace and Ms. Zhou Xiaochun. Mr. Tian
Jingyan ceased to be a member of the Nomination Committee
on 25 January 2022. Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace has been
appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee since
25 January 2022. Ms. Liu Jing was the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee at the beginning of the Reporting
Period and ceased to be chairman and a member of the
Nomination Committee on 25 May 2022. Mr. Gu Jianguo
has been appointed as the Chairman and a member of the
Nomination Committee with effect from 25 May 2022 to 2
March 2023. Mr. Lam Kam Kong Nathaniel has been appointed
as the Chairman and a member of the Nomination Committee
with effect from 3 March 2023. The primary functions of
the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of our Board and making recommendations on any
proposed changes to our Board to complement our Company’s
corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members, making recommendations to
our Board on the appointment of members of our Board
and succession planning of our Directors, and assessing the
independence of our independent non-executive Directors.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee had
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, the
implementation and effectiveness of the board diversity policy
and conducted a full review on the professional qualifications
and career background of all candidates to directorships
and members of each Board committee as well as the
independence of the independent Directors.
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Independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to
provide independent and objective opinions to the Board,
giving adequate control and balances for the Company
to protect the overall interests of the Shareholders and
the Company. They serve actively on the Board and Board
committees to provide their independent and objective views.
In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, as at the date of the annual report, the Company
has appointed five independent non-executive Directors,
representing more than one-third of the Board. One of the
independent non-executive Directors has the appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules. Each independent non-executive Director has
submitted annual confirmation of his/her independence to the
Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on
the contents of such confirmations, the Company considers
that all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a nomination policy for selecting
and recommending candidates for directorships. The Board is
ultimately responsible for selection and appointment of new
Directors.

Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select and
recommend candidates, including candidate nominated by
Shareholder(s), for directorships to the Board by giving due
consideration to a wide range of criteria, having due regard
to the benefits of diversity on the Board, including but not
limited to gender, age, experience, cultural and educational
background, expertise, skills and know-how, sufficient time
to effectively carry out their duties, qualifications including
accomplishment and experience in the relevant industries the
Company’s business is involved in, independence, reputation
for integrity, relevant requirements under the Listing Rules,
potential contributions that the individual(s) can bring to
the Board and other factors as it may deem are in the best
interests of the Company and the Shareholders.
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Nomination Procedure and Process

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for
the appointment of a director with reference to the selection
criteria as mentioned above. The Nomination Committee
may consult any source it deems appropriate in identifying or
selecting suitable candidates, such as recommendations from
existing directors, professional agency firms and proposals
from shareholders of the Company. The nomination will adopt
any process it deems appropriate in evaluating the suitability of
the candidates, such as review of resume, personal interviews,
background checks and third-party reference checks.

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship, the
Nomination Committee will convene a meeting to discuss and
consider the recommendation of the candidate to the Board
for appointment and the proposed remuneration package.
The Board will have the final authority on determining the
appointment of the Candidate.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

We have adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve and maintain an appropriate balance of
diversity perspectives of our Board that are relevant to our
business growth.

Pursuant to our board diversity policy, selection of our Board
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service, and any other factors
that our Board may consider relevant and applicable from
time to time. High emphasis is placed on ensuring a balanced
composition of skills and experience at our Board level in order
to provide a range of perspectives, insights and challenge that
enable our Board to discharge its duties and responsibilities
effectively, support good decision making in view of the core
businesses and strategy of our Group, and support succession
planning and development of our Board. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to our Board.
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Our Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring the
implementation of our board diversity policy. The proportion
of female Board representation is a measurable objective of
the Company in assessing the implementation of the diversity
policy. As at the date of this Report, the Board currently has
one female Director out of nine Directors, achieving the gender
diversity of the Board at 11.1%. The Board targets to maintain
at least the current level of female representation, with the
ultimate goal of increasing the proportion of female members
over time as and when suitable candidates are identified.
The nine Directors are from diverse and complementary
backgrounds, including business and operation management,
legal, accounting, financial management and alcohol-related
management. The valuable experiences and expertise they
bring to our business are critical for the long-term growth
of the Group. Gender diversity at workforce levels (including
our senior management) is disclosed in the Company’s
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”.

Our Nomination Committee reviews our Board’s composition
at least once annually taking into account the benefits
of all relevant diversity aspects, and adhere to our board
diversity policy when making recommendation on any Board
appointments. Our Nomination Committee also ensures that
diversity of our Board is considered as part of the evaluation of
our Board’s effectiveness.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Chan Ming Kei
and Mr. Lui Chi Ho are joint company secretaries of the
Company, whose biographies are set out in the section
headed “Biography of Directors and Senior Management”
of this annual report. Mr. Chan and Mr. Lui have received no
less than 15 hours of training on corporate governance and
other aspects during the year ended 31 December 2022 in
accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

We have adopted or expect to adopt a set of risk management
measures and internal control policies to identify, evaluate and
manage risks arising from our operations. Our internal control
system is summarised as follows:

- The Company does not have an internal audit function.
We have formed an Audit Committee comprising five
independent non-executive Directors as part of our
measures to assist the Board to improve corporate
governance. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
are to provide our Directors with an independent review
of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process,
internal control, risk management system and ESG
performance and reporting of our Group, to oversee
the audit process, and to perform other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by our Directors;

—  We have adopted and implemented comprehensive
control policies in respect of various aspects of our
business operations such as (i) risk management policies;
(ii) conflict of interest guidelines; and (iii) disclosure
guidelines;

—  We have established system and manuals in relation to,
among others, distribution of annual or interim reports
and publication, handling and monitoring of inside
information prior to public announcement and other
requirements under the Listing Rules;

—  Our Directors have attended training sessions conducted
by our legal advisers as to Hong Kong laws on the on-
going obligations and duties of a director of a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange;

- We have complied with the Corporate Governance
Code. To avoid potential conflicts of interest, we have
implemented corporate governance measures as set
out in the paragraph headed “Relationship with Our
Controlling Shareholders — Corporate governance
measures” in the Prospectus, if applicable. Our Directors
reviewed our corporate governance measures and our
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code each
financial year and complied with the “comply or explain”
principle in our corporate governance reports to be
included in our annual reports after Listing;

- We have engaged Ince & Co, our legal adviser as to Hong
Kong laws, to advise and assist our Board on compliance
matters in relation to the Listing Rules and/or other
relevant laws and regulations applicable to our Company;
and
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—  When considered necessary and appropriate, we will
seek professional advice and assistance from independent
internal control consultants, external legal advisers and/or
other appropriate independent professional advisers with
respect to matters relating to our internal controls and
legal compliance.

During the Reporting Period, we engaged an independent
internal control consultant (the “Internal Control
Consultant”) to perform a review over certain key areas
of our internal control system. The Internal Control
Consultant provided recommendations for our management’s
consideration to enhance our internal controls and procedures.

We are satisfied that the our risk management and internal
control systems including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions as appropriate to
the Group have been put in place and considers the risk
management and internal control systems effective and
adequate.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Group’s financial statements for each financial period to give
a true and fair view of the financial position, results and cash
flows of the Group for the period. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board
has selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis. The Directors are responsible for taking all
reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

ACCOUNTING RECORDS

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy the financial position of the Group and which enable
the preparation of financial statements in accordance with the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards as promulgated by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that, for
this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the financial statements.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the Reporting Period, the Company appointed
KTC following the resignation of HLB with effect from 15
December 2022, in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards to provide audit services to the Company.
The remuneration relating to the annual audit services was
HK$780,000.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders have the right to initiate and convene
general meetings

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association
of the Company, the shareholders shall be entitled to the
following rights: Extraordinary general meetings shall also
be convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Board or the secretary for the purpose
of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholders are welcome to put forward proposals relating
to the operations, strategy and/or management of the Group
at a general meeting. Proposals shall be sent to the Board or
the Company Secretary by written requisition to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Suites 4404-10, 44/F, One Island East, 18 Westlands
Road, Taikoo Place, Hong Kong.

Shareholders are entitled to the enquiry right

Shareholders are entitled to make enquiries to the Board
by directly mailing to the Company at its principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Suites 4404-10, 44/F, One
Island East, 18 Westlands Road, Taikoo Place, Hong Kong.
The Company will deal with all enquiries in a timely and
appropriate manner.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company believes that effective communication
with shareholders is essential to the enhancement of the
relationship with investors and enhancement of investors’
understanding of the Company’s business and strategies.
The Company highly values shareholders’ opinions and
suggestions, and actively organises and conducts various
activities related to the relationship with investors in order to
maintain the communication with shareholders, and to timely
satisfy the reasonable demands of all shareholders.

To enhance effective communication, the Company maintains
its website at http://www.slkj.cn where latest information on
the Company’s business development, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access.

The AGM will be held on 29 May 2023. The notice of the AGM
will be sent to the Shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the AGM.

RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS

The Company believes that good relationship with investors
will help build a more stable shareholder base. As a result,
since the Listing, the Company has been and will be dedicated
to maintaining a higher degree of transparency, complying
with the Listing Rules and timely providing investors with
comprehensive and accurate information, and continuously
performing its obligation of information disclosure as a listed
company. The Company will strengthen its communication
with investors and let investors understand corporate strategies
and business operation by organising road shows, participating
in investors summit, voluntary information disclosure and
others.

The Board considers our current practices were all well-
implemented throughout the Year and achieved satisfactory
results.

The Company will continue to maintain a policy for open and
effective communication with investors for the purposes of
timely providing investors with the latest information on the
Company’s business while in compliance with the relevant
regulatory provisions.
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ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Articles of Association was conditionally adopted on 10
February 2020 with effect from the Listing Date.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company actively fulfills its social responsibilities by
protecting the environment, making good use of and
cherishing resources, adopting more environmentally-friendly
designs and technologies and improving the environmental
awareness of its employees, partners and customers, so as
to minimize the impacts of the business of the Company
on the environment. For details, please refer to the 2022
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the
Company, which will be published on the website of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the website of the
Company (www.slkj.cn).
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KTC Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

MESHEMEBARARLE]

To the shareholders of

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (FORMERLY
KNOWN AS SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED)
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Diwang Industrial Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Sunlight Technology Holdings Limited) (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 63 to 177, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Boards (the “IASB”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

Independent Auditor’s Report
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our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter
HREZSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ET DA EEFARETSE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

8 7 B W SRR R B B

Refer to Notes 3, 5(b) and 21 to the consolidated financial statements

F2HREMBRRMES - 5(b)Kk21

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had gross trade
receivables of approximately RMB126,922,000 and
recognised provision for impairment of approximately
RMB5,208,000.

$2022412A318 - SEEESEKFIALTE
,%W\Eﬁ%uagzz,oooﬁ&ﬁ@ RRERBOARYK
5,208,0007T °

Management performed periodic assessment on
the recoverability of the trade receivables and the
sufficiency of provision for impairment based on
information including credit profile of different
customers, ageing of the trade receivables,
historical settlement records, subsequent settlement
status, expected timing and amount of realisation
of outstanding balances, and on-going trading
relationships with the relevant customers.
Management also considered forward-looking
information that may impact the customers’ ability to
repay the outstanding balances in order to estimate
the expected credit losses for the impairment
assessment.
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Our procedures in relation to management’s

impairment assessment on trade receivables included:
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B

o Understanding the credit control procedures
performed by management, including its
procedures on periodic review of trade
receivables and expected credit losses assessment
on trade receivables;

s HMEBRENTIGEERZERER BEHTHSE
FREKE SRR HENE SRR BHES
EREF

o Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile
of the trade receivables as at year end to the
underlying financial records and post year-end
settlements to bank receipts;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) FAREEXSE (£)
Key audit matter (continued) How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BREZEE (& RPN ETNAEERARETSE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables (continued)

B 5 EWRRRERN G (&

Refer to Notes 3, 5(b) and 21 to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

F2REEUBRRMEES 5(b)K21(4&)

We focused on this area due to the impairment e
assessment of trade receivables under the expected
credit losses model involved the use of significant
management judgements and estimates.
BMAEINZEE RAREHEEEERE THE
ZRWF IR E G REREIREE ARG &
fl&te

Inquiring of management for the status of each
of the material trade receivables past due as at
year end and corroborating explanations from
management with supporting evidence, such as
understanding on-going business relationship
with the customers based on trade records,
checking historical and subsequent settlement
records of and other correspondence with the
customers; and
MERESAEANFREAHANERE HEK
FRIENMRR WA BIEEEEEENREE
MRBEEZRHTRETFPNFEXBRE &
BIEFPHESE M HEREELCELEMBIE

Assessing the appropriateness of the expected
credit losses provisioning methodology,
examining the key data inputs on a sample basis
to assess their accuracy and completeness, and
challenging the assumptions, including both
historical and forward-looking information, used
to determine the expected credit losses.
AHEHEEEERREEEZNER L mERE
FEEER A BR AR EER T R BT
VTERBETRPEEBEMEANRER (BRE
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We found that the management judgment and
estimates used to assess the recoverability of the trade
receivables and determine the impairment provision to
be supportable by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon (“Other
Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on these
statements on 29 March 2022.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance is responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B &% BT 3R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % BT 3R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B &% B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

KTC Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Wong Kin Shing
Practising Certificate Number: P07435

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HEREBEREMEZERE R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
M= ARBT T AREFIT
Revenue A 7 501,437 233,945
Cost of sales £HE B A (307,739) (195,070)
Gross profit EF 193,698 38,875
Other income E A ug A 8 1,392 2,824
Other gains and losses B REE 9 (703) 2,945
Impairment losses under expected FEHREEEEEXTZ
credit loss model, net of reversal VERIEN k=R A 11 (2,239) (481)
Loss on disposal of financial assets  HEZAF(EFFAERZ
at fair value though profit or loss CREECERE (10,416) (1,762)
Loss on fair value change BRAFEFABED
of financial assets at fair value SREENTFEES
though profit or loss Erig (10,585) (11,700)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHMAX (77,100) (8,252)
Administrative and general expenses 1TH & —#&FI % (30,900) (23,889)
Share of result of an associate DG E R R EE 19 (77) (36)
Finance costs B 7% B 2N 10 (403) -
Profit/(loss) before tax BB ADER, (EE) 11 62,667 (1,476)
Income tax expenses FrS8 8 XX 12 (23,049) (1,124)
Profit/(loss) for the year RAREEANEEFERER
(E#E) 39,618 (2,600)
Profit/(loss) for the year DTEEFERZER, (BE)
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZiN/NETE ¥ =N 21,851 (2,600)
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR M 17,767 =
39,618 (2,600)
Profit/(loss) per share (RMB cents) &REF,~ (EiE)
(AR¥5)
Basic H A 16 1.70 (0.23)
Diluted e 16 N/ATiE H N/AT 3@ A
FIBEERARLT —B-_FFR
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HEREBERHEMEZE KRS X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #&{Z2022F 12H31H IFF/E

2022 2021
2022%F 20214F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
liEsd AR®TT ARETT
Profit/(loss) for the year FRERA(EBE) 39,618 (2,600)
Other comprehensive Hih2@EB A (FE)
income/(loss)
Item that may be reclassified HEAJREEF D EERDZ
subsequently to profit or loss: EH :
Exchange difference on translating & /BINER 2 [E =58
foreign operation 2,763 (4,131)
Other comprehensive FREME2ERA(BE)
income/(loss) for the year 2,763 (4,131)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FRZMEW A~ (FE) L HE
for the year 42,381 (6,731)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) A FEEFERZEBRA
for the year attributable to: (E18) 8%
Owners of the Company KAREE A 24,614 (6,731)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR A 17,767 -
42,381 (6,731)

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R R

As at 31 December 2022 JR20224F 12 H31H

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
M= ARBT T AREFIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B NE&E 17 108,507 88,804
Right-of-use assets {E A E 18 26,282 26,888
Interest in an associate RN— B E QB 2 s 19 2,887 2,964
Deferred tax assets RAEFIEE E 30 781 445
138,457 119,101
Current assets RBEE
Inventories Ve 20 98,242 31,276
Trade and bills receivables B 5 WA & EW R T 21 144,766 90,357
Prepayments, deposits and other TER IR ~ e R E MR
receivables 22 6,610 2,453
Financial assets at fair value through RAFEFABRNSHEE
profit or loss 23 7,763 36,262
Pledged bank deposits EHEFRITER 24 2,428 5,278
Bank balances and cash IRITEHR MR 24 48,112 28,447
307,921 194,073
Current liabilities REAEE
Trade and bills payables B 5N RIE R EN R 25 68,656 38,011
Other payables and accruals Hh e FRIB R EEH B A 26 8,493 4,852
Deferred income EEWA 27 137 137
Amount due to a related company BN —RE#EE A T KA 28 447 -
Tax payables JE A B 18 7,852 48
Bank borrowings RITEE 29 10,000 -
95,585 43,048
Net current assets REEEFE 212,336 151,025
Total assets less current liabilities BEERAREBEE 350,793 270,126
Non-current liability FRBEE
Deferred income LU A 27 410 547
Net assets EEFE 350,383 269,579
FIBEERARLT —B-_FFR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B BARR K

As at 31 December 2022 R2022F12H31H

2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B ARBTT ARETT

Capital and reserves BEXRK#E

Share capital [

Reserves G

Total equity attributable to owners AR RIHEA AE(H R
of the Company R

Non-controlling interest FEIE IR M A

Total equity B R

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
31 March 2023.

Chen Hua
R
Director

EF

The accompany notes from an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEa® X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANARE AR
Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Statutory  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
e RGEE  EREE  iRRE  EXRE  REEA 6% FERES s
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETT AREBTR ARETn ARETr ARETT ARETT ARETD
(Note (b)) (Note (a))
(M) ()
At1 January 2021 MOEIA1R 3497 128416 62,659 12,174 (882 31487 237351 - B
Loss for the year FREE - - = = - (2,600 (2,600) - (2,600
Other comprehensive loss for the year — FREMZ AR = - - - (4131) - (4,131) - (4.131)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ FRZEBELE - - = = (4131) (2,600) (6,731) = (6,731)
Transfer to statutory reserve BERETRE - - - 1,263 - (1,263) - - -
Issue of shares under placing (Note 32(a))  BERE%7 1R (Hz32e)) 655 39,561 - - - - 40,216 = 40,16
Transaction costs attributable to issue of ~ BEREXTRAEERFRE
shares under placing - (1,257) - - - - (1,257) - (1,257)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 120214128318 k2022514
1H 4152 166,720 62,659 13,437 (5013) 21,624 269,579 - 269,579
Profit for the year Epiai - - - - - 21,851 21,851 17,767 39,618
Other comprehensive income for the year  £RE M2 ERA - - - - 2,763 - 2,763 - 2,763
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FR2ENALE - - - - 2,763 21,851 24,614 17,767 42,381
Transfer to statutory reserve BETETERE - - - 6,942 - (6.942) - - -
Issue of shares under placing (Note 32(b) R EEE %KM (H3200)) 810 36,675 - - - - 37,485 - 37,485
Transaction costs attributable to issue of B EREXTRAERZZHA
shares under placing - (537) - - - - (537) - (537)
Capital contrbution from non-controllng  3E MR 2 A
interest - - - - - - - 1,475 14715
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12831A 4,962 202,858 62,659 20,379 (2,250) 42,533 331,141 19,242 350,383
Notes: Bk
(@) The subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC shall (a) RIEFBIRRE AR B B FY
appropriate 10% of their annual statutory net profit (after BRARIEKEFEEETEMAN (LEIEEM
offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the statutory reserve fund iﬂ&ifl&ﬂ?ﬁ?ﬁ)E’MO%E%?‘:.:&'EE%%
account in accordance with the PRC Company Law. When the SHRF -MZFEESERERZMNBEA
balance of such reserve fund reaches 50% of the subsidiary’s IR HI50% - EUJTLT%IE'E S AR fA] 3 — i/':
share capital, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory ER-NESEEHER EZEREST
reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to FREREATFEBEIIESE -
increase capital after proper approval.
(b)  Capital reserve represents the difference between the aggregate (b) BAFHEIEEE2016F12A318IEFE

amount of issued and fully paid share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company and the nominal amount of the
shares issued by the Company in exchange for the entire equity
interests in the subsidiaries as part of the Group reorganisation
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

RRBPTEEN B AR E #1TRERR
R A FE B AN R AR ER B A R 2 #RA%
BEAREEEA-BMHMNEEHITROE
BRI R ZR

FEIBEERERAT —Bo-FFR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE

2022 2021
2022 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T ARETT
Operating activities RESEE
Profit/(loss) before tax BREADEF, (BE) 62,667 (1,476)
Adjustments for: BATIER L AE
Depreciation of property, plant and  #1% M= kRIGITE
equipment 17 6,925 6,673
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {F A EEFTE 18 606 606
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE WEREREZ
plant and equipment E5i8 g 831 148
Written off of property, plant and VI BB KRR g
equipment 9 1 -
Provision for impairment loss under %% I8 2 JEEZ B &
ECL model on: HEXIBET ZREEE
B
— trade receivables — 8 5 EKIE 11 2,239 478
— other receivables — H b fE I8 11 = 3
Bank interest income RATHAE WA 8 (181) (893)
Dividend income on financial assets & A F{Ezt ABH 2 S REE
at FVTPL B A 8 - (253)
Finance costs JEUR - I 10 403 -
Loss on disposal of financial assets ~ HE&EZRAFEFFAEBZREZ
at FVTPL TRMEEZER 10,416 1,762
Loss on fair value change of financial RAFEFABRZ S BEE
assets at FVTPL Z ATV EEEER 10,585 11,700
Share of result of an associate S (el NI ¥4 19 77 36
Exchange gain, net BE W U a H ER 9 (129) (3,043)
Operating cash inflows before EEECBHIMNLERS
movements in working capital mA 94,440 15,741
Increase in inventories FEE (66,966) (13,282)
Increase in trade and bills receivables 28 5 JfE Y 5% 18 K JiE U == 45 3% fn (56,648) (21,351)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, — FEfI3KIE « #e R H b fEUGRIA
deposits and other receivables (3% hn),/ &k > (3,829) 1,052
Increase in trade and bills payables 28 5 & {~ 2} 18 K & ~F 22 $5 3% N 30,645 18,065
Increase/(decrease) in other payables E b & 1~ 238 [ fE 5+ & A
and accruals #2417 CF ) 3,573 (814)
Decrease in deferred income iR JE YA R, (137) (137)
Cash generated from/(used in) KEEEMG (FTA)RS
operating activities 1,078 (726)
Income tax paid BETEH (15,579) (1,332)
Net cash used in operating activities & E &R & F 5 (14,501) (2,058)

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

2022 2021
2022 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B aE AR®T T ARETTT
Investing activities REES
Additions of items of property, plant KB  H/E &R EEE
and equipment (27,593) (30,172)
Proceeds from disposal of property, H&EW%  BERZEESRE
plant and equipment 133 14
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank B #EBRITEZR D (12
deposits ) 2,850 (5,278)
Purchases of financial assets at FVTPL & Bix AP ET ABZ 2
TREE - (75,929)
Net proceeds from disposal of HERAFETFABRZZ
financial assets at FVTPL PRMEEZFERIBEERE 9,579 25,538
Dividend income received 2R S WA - 253
Capital injections of investment in an ¥ & Z AR 2)F&
associate 19 = (3,000)
Interest received B F B 181 893
Net cash used in investing activities &R & /EEFTAIR & /55 (14,850) (87,681)
Financing activities RMEEE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEFERIE 10,000 -
Advance from a related company Ra Bt 5 2R 447 =
Capital contribution from SEERERITE
non-controlling interests 1,475 =
Shares issue under placing BRI N AR (D 21T 37,485 40,216
Payment of issue costs X NETEMA (537) (1,257)
Interest paid ERFE (403) -
Net cash generated from financing g & EENFT15IH & /F 58
activities 48,467 38,959
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and R & RIRELZEY
cash equivalents i, CRid ) FE 19,116 (50,780)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FzBHeRkReFEY
beginning of the year 28,447 79,641
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEFH w8
changes 549 (414)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end F R Z2HE & RIRSZEED
of the year 48,112 28,447
TEIBEERERAT —T-_FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE

1.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

GENERAL INFORMATION

Diwang Industrial Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Sunlight Technology Holdings Limited) (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited
liability. The registered office address is at 89 Nexus Way,
Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9009, Cayman Islands.
The principal place of business of the Company is Suites
4404-10, 44/F, One Island East, 18 Westlands Road,
Taikoo Place, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the manufacturing and sales of faux leather chemicals
and Chinese baijiu. The shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the presentation currency
of the Company. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousands (“RMB’000") except otherwise indicated.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, which is different from the Company’s functional
currency of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"”). The directors
of the Company adopted RMB as presentation currency
as the Group’s operating activities are carried out in the
PRC.

2022 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB"”) for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 January 2022 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendment to IAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to

IFRSs 2018-2020

Amendment to IAS 37

Amendments to IFRSs

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS
16 property and equipment - Proceeds before
Intended Use

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments specify that the costs
of any item that were produced while bringing an item
of property and equipment to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management (such as samples produced when
testing whether the relevant property and equipment is
functioning properly) and the proceeds from selling such
items should be recognised and measured in the profit or
loss in accordance with applicable standards. The cost of the
items are measured in accordance with IAS 2 Inventories.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #&{Z2022F 12H31H IFF/E

2.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS
16 property and equipment — Proceeds before
Intended Use (continued)

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group
has applied the new accounting policy retrospectively to
property and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of 1 January 2021. The application of
the amendments in the current year has had no impact
on the Group’s financial positions and performance.

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 37
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments specify that,
when an entity assesses whether a contract is onerous in
accordance with HKAS 37, the unavoidable costs under a
contract should reflect the least net cost of exiting from
the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling
it and any compensation or penalties arising from
failure to fulfil it. Costs of fulfilling the contract include
incremental costs and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts (e.g. an allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the
amendments are applicable to contracts for which
the Group has not yet fulfilled all its obligations as at
the date of initial application on 1 January 2022. The
application of the amendments in the current year has
had no impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance.

Impacts on application of Amendments to IFRSs
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. The annual improvements make
amendments to the following standards:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # Z2022%F12H31H 1F F/Z

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to
IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020
(continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of assessing
whether modification of terms of original financial
liability constitutes substantial modification under the
“10 per cent” test, a borrower includes only fees paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the borrower or the lender
on the other’s behalf.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the
Group applies the amendment to financial liabilities
that are modified or exchanged as at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2022.

IFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to lllustrative Example 13 accompanying
IFRS 16 removes from the example the illustration of
reimbursement relating to leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to remove any potential confusion.

The application of the amendments in the current year
has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE
2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2. EAKEITERREI RS ZER

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

([ BB H R 5 22 R 1) ()

& 28 5 1B [l R 4 R HY T RT RARERT
B PR B 3 3R 5 2 R
AEBYWEREFEAATCEMER
RERE ] MARERTBIBR B 53R S

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

ZEBI

—'—/\J :

IFRS 17 (including the June Insurance Contracts’ BRI AR REAER] (R4
2020 and December 2021 1795 (B
Amendments to IFRS 17) 202046 8 &
2021412 A
PR EA T A 42 R
FNTHRZ1EF]
)
Amendments to IFRS 10 and ~ Sale or Contribution of Assets BB M5 2R REE AR
IAS 28 between an Investor and its FI0RLEEE ARG EDR
Associate or Joint Venture? FHAERIZE 2855 FZHEMEE
CCHEN) HESFE?
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback? BRI s R SERMELCMNES
F16R(BRIA)  AfE
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current RetERE1 BEIBEARD
or Non-current® SRUBETAS) S IETED?
Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with R ERET B REAIER
Covenants® FRUEFTA) EU=REE
Amendments to IAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies' BIFSEEERIE1 SEECREE
IFRS Practice Statement 2 S5 K2 (B B B 7S 3R
HEREBEBNE
F25 (BT A)
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’ R EAES FERHEFTHER'
UACCHEN)
Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and B et ER|ZE12 HE—XXFEL
Liabilities arising from a Single EACCHEN) WEERARE
Transaction’ BEARIELET
g

R2023F1 A1 A Z B HBENERE

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 L

January 2023. AR A o

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date 2 REFEE R 2 BRBHFE
to be determined. AR AR o

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 3 1R2024F 1 B1B sk 2 &R FE
January 2024. AR A o
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Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all new and amendments to IFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures deal with situations where there is a sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments
state that gains or losses resulting from the loss of control
of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a
transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method, are recognised
in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint
venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from the
remeasurement of investments retained in any former
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method)
to fair value are recognised in the former parent’s profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (“the 2022 Amendments’)

The 2022 Amendments modify the requirements
introduced by the amendments to IAS 1 issued in 2020,
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
("the 2020 Amendment”) on how an entity classifies
debt and other financial liabilities with covenants as
current or non-current. The amendments specify that only
covenants with which the entity is required to comply
with on or before the end of the Reporting Period affect
the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date. Covenants
which are required to comply with only after the
Reporting Period do not affect whether that right exists
at the end of the Reporting Period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #&{Z2022F 12H31H IFF/E

2.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (“the 2022 Amendments’) (continued)

The amendments also specify the disclosure requirements
about information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liabilities
could become repayable within twelve months after the
reporting period, if the entity classify liabilities arising
from loan arrangements as non-current when the entity’s
right to defer settlement of those liabilities is subject
to the entity complying with covenants within twelve
months after the reporting period.

The amendments also defer the effective date of the
2020 Amendments to annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024. The amendments, together
with the 2020 Amendments, are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024,
with early application permitted. If an entity applies the
2020 amendments for an earlier period after the issue of
the 2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply the
2022 Amendments for that period.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31

December 2022, the application of the amendments will
not result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement
2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

IAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if
the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting
policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses
to disclose immaterial accounting policy information,
such information must not obscure material accounting
policy information.

IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgement
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate
how an entity applies the “four-step materiality process”
to accounting policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is material to its
financial statements. Guidance and examples are added
to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group but may affect the disclosures
of the Group’s significant accounting policies. The
impacts of application, if any, will be disclosed in the
Group’s future consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £20224¥12H31H It F/&

2.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty”. An accounting
policy may require items in financial statements to
be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may require
such items to be measured at monetary amounts
that cannot be observed directly and must instead
be estimated. In such a case, an entity develops an
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by
the accounting policy. Developing accounting estimates
involves the use of judgements or assumptions based on
the latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting
estimates in IAS 8 is retained with additional
clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to

have significant impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with accounting policies which
conform with IFRSs issued by the IASB. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
information is considered material if such information
is reasonably expected to influence decision made by
primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis excepted for
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
("FVTPL") and financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements are determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS
36 Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #&{Z2022F 12H31H IFF/E

3.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and companies
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are

changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’'s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE

3.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’'s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investments in associates (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest
is a financial asset within the scope of IFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest
in the associate is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods, or
for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress as described below) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for a property
interest which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element at
initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease
is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated
statement of financial position. When the payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land
and building elements, the entire property is generally
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets (other than construction in progress) less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each
part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the assets and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets to determine whether
there is any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating until to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE
3.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

2022 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All reqular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset
or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #&{Z2022F 12H31H IFF/E

3.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

3 the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

2022 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debts instruments/receivables
subsequent measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE

3.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

Debt instruments/receivables classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments/receivables classified as at FVTOCI as a result
of interest income calculated using the effective interest
method are recognised in profit or loss. All other changes
in the carrying amount of these debt instruments/
receivables are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of FVTOCI
reserve. Impairment allowances are recognised in
profit or loss with corresponding adjustment to other
comprehensive income without reducing the carrying
amounts of these debt instruments/receivables. When
these debt instruments/receivables are derecognised, the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is disclosed
separately in consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit losses (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including trade and bills receivables, deposit and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances)
which are subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting period to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and
bills receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #&{Z2022F 12H31H IFF/E

3.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessments,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE

3.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (continued)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower'’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over one year past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL
on trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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3.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments/receivables
that are measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with
the exception of trade and other receivables, where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

2022 Annual Report

3.

REVBRRNEREERE
RETBRE)

EMIAE)

THEE (&)

WRIREIBR B 5 3R 5 2E R O /B HE 7T
WEF G CREAERE (&)
BHEEBENGERERE)
MERAEMES  AREEFIES A
BFE B A R, -

o EHIUR
s BEBANME BRERTE K
o HMEMERFIAR(INA)-

EIEE S E R o ABR AR
B EERERUEERBREE -

MEWARE S REEMNREEAR
AE EEREELREERENS
SUERSN RUEIER T - B B AR
T RVEER B AT E o

BRIZFAFEFARLMEE K E8
BB TR UK  AEBER
FEMEESMITAZEREENRERS
mRBEN RS EE EE S REAM
JE W R IERR SN - EAR FE SR B S 1R
BEIRERR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # Z2022F12H31H IF F/E

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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3.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables,
other payables and accruals, amount due to a related
company and bank borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at
the present value of the modified contractual cash flows
discounted at the financial liabilities’ original effective
interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred are
adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified financial
liabilities and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial
liability is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows of a financial asset or financial liability to
which the amortised cost measurement applies as a result
of interest rate benchmark reform, the Group applies
the practical expedient to account for these changes
by updating the effective interest rate, such change in
effective interest rate normally has no significant effect
on the carrying amount of the relevant financial asset or
financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is required by interest rate benchmark reform
if and only if, both these conditions are met:

o the change is necessary as a direct consequence of
interest rate benchmark reform; and

J the new basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is economically equivalent to the previous
basis (i.e. the basis immediately preceding the
change).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject
to regulatory restrictions that result in such balances
no longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than
for investment or other purposes.
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3.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
processing, labour and indirect overheads, and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price of
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental
costs directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Borrowing cost

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the government
grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants
are presented under “other income”.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).
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3.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
nonoccurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents goods or services (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

e  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when

the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or
services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or
service underlying each performance obligation is
determined at contract inception. It represents the price
at which the Group would sell a promised good or
service separately to a customer. If a stand-alone selling
price is not directly observable, the Group estimates it
using appropriate techniques such that the transaction
price ultimately allocated to any performance obligation
reflects the amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to the customer.

Manufacturing and sales of faux leather chemicals
and Chinese baijiu

Revenue from sales of faux leather chemicals and Chinese
baijiu are recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been shipped to
the customer’s specific location (delivery). Following the
delivery, the customer has full discretion over the manner
of distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #&{Z2022F 12H31H IFF/E

3.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application of IFRS 16 or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under IFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of
contract

For a contract contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease component, the
Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # Z2022F12H31H IF F/E

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE

3.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)
The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

e  variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

e  the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent review/
expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leases (continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

Changes in the basis for determining the future
lease payments as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, the
Group applies the practical expedient to remeasure the lease
liabilities by discounting the revised lease payments using
the unchanged discount rate and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets. A lease
modification is required by interest rate benchmark reform
if, and only if, both of these conditions are met:
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE

3.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leases (continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the future
lease payments as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform (continued)

e the modification is necessary as a direct
consequence of interest rate benchmark reform;
and

o the new basis for determining the lease payments
is economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e.
the basis immediately preceding the modification).

Taxation

Income tax for the period comprises current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss) before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the Reporting Period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of each reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset,
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE

3.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’'s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # Z2022%F12H31H 1F F/Z

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Employee benefits (continued)

Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
(continued)

The employees in the Company’s subsidiaries operating
in the PRC are members of retirement benefits scheme
(the “PRC RB Schemes”) operated by the local municipal
government. The local municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefit obligation of all existing
and future retired employees of the PRC subsidiaries. The
only obligation of the PRC subsidiaries with respect to
the PRC RB Scheme is to meet the required contributions
under the PRC RB Schemes. The contributions are charged
to the profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at
the earlier of when the Group entity can no longer
withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when
it recognises any related restructuring costs.
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3.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
Reporting Period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at
the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Research and development expense

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

e  the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

e  the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any),
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #&{Z2022F 12H31H IFF/E

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Related parties transactions
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(@) has control or joint control over the Group;

(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the reporting
entity.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(ili) both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

’| ’| 4 DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report
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REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # Z2022F12H31H IF F/E

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Related parties transactions (continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (i).

(vii) a person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
inflecting by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between related parties.

3.

REMBBRRNEREERE
REFBE#E)

RESRZ(E)
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4.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3 to consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimations uncertainty

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors of the Company
have made in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Provision of ECL for financial assets measured at
amortised cost

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumption about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group use judgment in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the debtor's aging analysis, historical settlement
record, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable
and available without undue costs or effort at the end of
each reporting period.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade and
bills receivables, and deposits and other receivables are
disclosed in Notes 5, 21 and 22.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

()

(ii)

5. @TA

Categories of financial instruments (i) =RITAE5
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®B T ARBFT
Financial assets at amortised cost REERAFENESREE
— Trade receivables — B 5 EYWKIA 121,714 82,377
— Deposits and other receivables  —312 & K H fh fE W 3K 08 2,120 54
— Pledged bank deposits —BERRITER 2,428 5,278
— Bank balances and cash —RITHEHREIRS 48,112 28,447
174,374 116,156
Bills receivables at FVTOCI BRAFEINAHMEERAN
Bl EE 23,052 7,980
Financial assets at FVTPL RATEFABENERERE 7,763 36,262
Financial liabilities at amortised R#EFERAHENSHEAE
cost
— Trade and bills payables —ERNRIEREMNER 68,656 38,011
— Other payables and accruals —H b e RIE M ERTE R 7,036 3,614
— Amount due to a related company — & 1<t 8 B 5 3018 447 -
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 10,000 -
86,139 41,625

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, amount due
to a related company and bank borrowings.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are market risk (including interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk and equity price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
management reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below:

(i)

FEEXRERARDA

MBEREREEERBE

AEENIRERTABEES
EMFIBERERRE e RH
fib EUFRIR ~ I FERT AR R
MEREE DHEMRTER
RITHEBERE BHRRERE
H0R - A BN RIR R E &
P FEAS BRI T SRIBIA S SRTT 18
Bo

AEBSRTAMEENTIER
A3 Th 5 R e (B 36 A R AL
SIS LB K B B LR )~ 15 &
RRRBE SRR - ANEEE IR
B kAZEREEZ SRR
HIBR - BRABCRBLR T
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5.

(ii) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
(@) Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to
the financial risks of changes in interest rates,

SRTHEZ)
(i) HEAMETEEEREE (&)

(a) TEHEER
AREBERBEBAZHE
HE)  JNEE R R ARAER

foreign currency exchange rates and equity Y B 75 R B ©
price.
Interest rate risk T % 2 B

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Bank borrowings bearing fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk but the exposure to the Group
is considered immaterial. The exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk for the Group's
bank balances and pledge bank deposits are
considered immaterial as at 31 December 2022
and 2021. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is

presented for interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk

FERBEHRTIENRD
FEHIR e RERTT ST
G EMm LR K B A&
B o L EE FIEFT B ZIRTT
BEESAEBRATATE
FER R EAEEEERZ
B B I S K o FR20224F
202112 A31B A EH
RITHEB REEPIRITHE
HETEZ KR REF X
R I E K o EIt - W
E5FIERRBRE DT ©

I L B

SRR R T AME
18 AL = 5 & i i B O =
R AKEBEEBAREERA
BEBEETEAXTIE
TDEIENERTIAELE
RSN LR - ez FIMNE L
FEZEXZABNEE
BERMNMEES-

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group is expose to the foreign currency risk
arising from financial instruments which are
primarily denominated in United Stated Dollars
("USD") from its ordinary operating activities,
these are not the functional currency of the
group entities to which these transactions
relate.

KB A SN
RN R 7 R i
e EEERIIT -

As at each reporting date, foreign currency
denominated financial assets, translated into
RMB closing rates, are as follows:

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Trade receivables: B 5 WK
- USD —£TC 677 1,608

1 1 8 DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report
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A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # Z2022F12H31H IF F/E

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5.

(ii) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity as at the end of each of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in foreign currency exchange rates,
with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's post-tax profit (2021: post-tax loss)
(due to changes in the fair value of monetary
assets) and the Group's entities.

EMTHE@)
(i) MBEREREEREE ()

(a)

miSER(E)
I m B (&)
TRIIFREREHRE

FOBERT  AEBERHRE
M (20214 « BREE)
RASBEERBEHINEER
IR A 3E A] BE & B A R
E(BREREEN R TE

Increase/
(decrease) in
rate of Impact on
foreign post-tax
currency profit/(loss)
INEEE R wmR
i 4 (B1])
(T~B&) 2%
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12A31H
If RMB weakens against USD W AREHETRZE 5 29
If RMB strengthens against USD  {i# A R ¥ H, 2= o FHE (5) (29)
At 31 December 2021 2021612 A31H
If RMB weakens against USD mARKEHETRE 5 68
If RMB strengthens against USD  fif A R ¥ X T HHE (5) (68)

The Group currently does not have a foreign
exchange hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure should
the need arise.

7N S5 B B Al 3 & S FE
R - AW AREEEE
EFIMNERK  WHRARH
B E E L IHEAINER

B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(ii) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(a)

(b)

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Market risk (continued)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in equity securities
measured at FVTPL. For equity securities
measured at FVTPL quoted in the Stock
Exchange, the management of the Group
manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risks.
The Group has appointed a special team
to monitor the price risk and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.

The sensitivity analyses have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at
the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 5% higher/lower, the post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2022 would
increase/decrease by RMB388,000 (2021: post-
tax loss decrease/increase RMB1,813,000) as a
result of the changes in fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation
to its trade and bill receivables, deposits and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets.

Pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and bills receivables

The Group expects that there is no significant
credit risk associated with pledged bank
deposits and bank balances since they are
substantially deposited at state-owned banks
and other medium or large-sized listed banks.
The credit risks on bills receivables are limited
because the counterparties are reputable
banks. Management does not expect that
there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

2022 Annual Report
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A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5.

(ii) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment (b) EEE&RET

EMIA®)
(i) HEEBEEEEREE(E)

(continued) (&)
Other receivables and deposits HttERSFEAREZS
For other receivables and deposits, the ohH fth fE W B R IR S M

management makes periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables and deposits based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also
quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The management believes that
there are no significant increase in credit risk
of these amounts since initial recognition. For

S EEERBEATAEER
B BEKLBREERTIE
MERIREEE R EHYE
1t & Uk FRIE I 3R & HY AT IR
Bl VE R B RIFE S - BB E
7@1* BYI SRR - %

B2IEERRIER
**i.'a‘iju #H £20224% 128
318 EFE - AEBEF G

the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group Huip el 1B LIRS B8
assessed the ECL for other receivables and HEEEE  WERBEHE
deposits and thus provision of allowance of ECL EEEBENARES T
of approximately RMBNil (2021: approximately (20214 : #9 A R #3,000
RMB3,000) was recognised. JC)°

Trade receivables B BRI E

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
uses an internal credit scoring system to assess
the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer. Limits and

E%xﬁcﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁZﬁf N

SESRAAREENT R
RAGEERPONERE
= TRELXEFHNEER

scoring attributed to customers are reviewed BH-RTEPZEELERK
once a year. The Group generally allows an D BFER IR REE
average credit period ranged from 30 to REMETPR TN T30R

120 days to its customers. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. The Group only accepts bills issued or
guaranteed by reputable PRC banks if trade
receivables are settled by bills and therefore
the management of the Group considers
the credit risk arising from the endorsed or
discounted bills is insignificant. In this regard,
the management considers that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

FEEXRERARDA

ZF120B 2 FHEEH-E
fhESIERZFE T 80E - ARE
RECEUERHETTB) YL Bl 380 BR MR
o REBEEMNBTEHE
BIRITHREHKERNER
R RE S RNTIERER
12%::: E&$E.Eﬁwu
EEEXREBRELED
1*EI—L A0 N E K o BLULL
T BREERRIAEENGE
BB E ARRUE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. I HE(#E)
(ii) Financial risk management objectives and (i) BHEREEEEREE(Z)
policies (continued)
(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment (b) EEE K KRETM
(continued) (&)
Trade receivables (continued) EZEKE (&)
The Group's concentration of credit risk by 2022128318 N&EEH
geographical locations is mainly in the PRC, EinEE DN EERREE
which accounted for 100% (2021: 100%) of ERRPE - (HE SRR
the total trade receivables as at 31 December TH 42 %8 /9100% (20214 :
2022. The Group has concentration of credit 100%)° A& B E B =R
risk as 8% (2021: 14%) and 29% (2021: 42%) S TTHARE 5 EIKEIA
of the total trade receivables was due from the 48 =8 118% (20214F : 14%)
Group's largest customer and the five largest §29%(20214F : 42%) 3 5l
customers respectively within the Chinese BEWARERNGZAZES K
liquor business segment and the Faux Leather HBEZEE D HARA LR
Chemicals Business segment. In view of the BREBHEANARER
history of business dealings with the debtors and BVRIE - ERNBERZEE
the sound collection history of the receivables AR SRR R B ZE
due from them, management believes that B ARIER R FWFKE
there is not material credit risk inherent in the i ERERANEREK
Group's outstanding receivable balance due from W e rEWZEEFEACT
these debtors saved for the debtor related to XTI EEEE A E FEW
the impaired trade receivable disclosed in the FIBRBE R ES ABRIN) 5K
below. In order to minimise the credit risk, the HEMRAE EWEREREE
management of the Group has delegated a team B AREREESER
responsible for determination of credit limits and S NEBEEEEEIER—
credit approvals. XEREBEETEEREEN
RIEE#IZ -
In addition, the Group performs impairment N REBRIBETBHEE
assessment under ECL model on trade EEEXSAEEAEHR R
receivables with significant balances and EHREERENEZEZEK
credit-impaired individually and/or collectively. FIEBEB R, SHAEEITR
Except for items that are subject to individual BHE - BRZA BB EITAE
evaluation, which are assessed for impairment I8 B B3 RESN &2
individually, the remaining trade receivables TE S EKZERIERER
are grouped based on aging of outstanding R RECETT DM - R
balances. Impairment of RMB2,239,000 (2021: EERRBEARE
RMB478,000) is recognised during the year. 2,239,0007T(20214F : AR
Details of the quantitative disclosures are set #478,0007C ) EEH E K
out below in this note. el N

1 2 2 DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report



5.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

5. E@MIEE)

(ii) Financial risk management objectives and (i)
policies (continued)

(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment

P EREERERBEK(E)

(b) f=E = kKR E L

(continued) (%&)

Trade receivables (continued) BESEWSE (&)

The following table provides information about TREIINZHEREEE
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables B(EESERE)REER X
which are assessed on individual and collective SERELET(ERE SRR
basis within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired). B E E R LR o
Debtors with significant outstanding balances MR2022F12 A31H - BRE 42
with gross carrying amount of RMB43,156,000 & & A R #43,156,0007T A9
and debtors with gross carrying amount of BAREREHRNEERE
RMB83,767,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021: A A K #83,767,0007T &Y fE
RMBNil and RMB85,347,000) were assessed WBR (20214« AREEE
individually and collectively respectively. fE&AEﬁZBS 347,0007T) 2

D RETTEIE R RS

RMB'000
AEBTR
2022 2021
0F 15
Gross carrying amount  Credit loss allowance (Gross carrying amount Credit loss allowance
REAE E BHERE EEBRRER
Proportion Proportion  Carrying Proportion Proportion ~ Carrying
Amount (%)  Amount (%)  amount  Amount (%) Amount (%) amount
Category 5 &8 A% &8 whl%) Rl 28 Hhlo) 28 hi%) EafE
Provision on individual basls  RARIEE 2
- Trade receivables -B5ENGE 43,156 34 (531) 12 4,625 - - - - -
Provision on a collective basis R EEER 12
- Trade receivables -B5EYGE 83,767 86 (4678 56 79089 85347 00 97 8 8
Total & 126,923 100 (5,209) - 121,714 85,347 100 (2,970) - 82371

(i)  Analysis of trade receivables for which

() REREEFEEE

credit loss allowance is provided on an BRENE KR
individual basis: MEREBEZDH
2022 Closing Balance
2022F B R &8k
Gross carrying Credit loss Proportion
amount allowance (%)
Item BE REAE FEFBERE EE Al (%)
Trade receivables 1 2 S ERZ 6,319 (72) 1.1%
Trade receivables 2 /\%FELISZ/TAIEZ 6,005 (69) 1.1%
Trade receivables 3 fé’%ﬁ%ilﬁzmlﬁa 5,574 (64) 1.1%
Trade receivables 4 25 EKEL 4,438 (64) 1.4%
Trade receivables 5 E’i%ﬁELISZMIES 5,122 (58) 1.1%
Trade receivables 6 0 ERES 3,215 (37) 1.2%
Trade receivables 7 E LG 5,718 (65) 1.1%
Trade receivables 8 B AW GRIES 2,379 (27) 1.1%
Trade receivables 9 2 S EWNTIE9 1,640 (44) 2.7%
Trade receivables 10 ZHEWEIE0 2,746 (31) 1.1%
43,156 (531)
FEIBXERERAT —Z-_—FFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £20224¥12H31H It F/&

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. I HE(#E)
(ii) Financial risk management objectives and (i) BHEREEEEREE(Z)
policies (continued)
(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment (b) EEE b &RESTE
(continued) (&)
Trade receivables (continued) EZEWE (&)
Past due but not impaired
ERBERRE
within 91 to over

Current 90 days 180 days 180 days Total
B8 90BR 91Z180H #iE180A At

At 31 December 2022 2022512 A31H

Expected loss rate (%) BEEEE(%) 1.47 1.92 6.60 31.10 5.58
Gross carrying amount BREE(ARETT)

(RMB'000) 34,347 29,797 10,200 9,423 83,767
Loss allowance (RMB'000) 518 %#E (ARE T L) 504 572 673 2,929 4,678

Past due but not impaired

BafBRmE
within 91 to over
Current ~ 90days 180 days 180 days Total
B8 90RAMA 91Z180H #BiE180H @t
At 31 December 2021 202112 A318
Expected loss rate (%) RHEBEE(%) 1.69 2.08 7.46 33.34 3.48
Gross carrying amount BREE(ARETT)

(RMB'000) 50,135 25,381 6,511 3,320 85,347
Loss allowance (RMB'000) f5iB%#E (ARET L) 848 529 486 1,107 2,970
The estimated expected loss rate are estimated fhEt B EXR TR EMER T
based on default rates over the expected life 2L EE BRI
of the debtors within the same industry and HEWRIEREGTFHA
similar risk characteristics and are adjusted for RE A KRG 5T WL AR
forward-looking information that is available B NERAKZ HE) ] &
without under cost or effort. SHREEEEMELR AR -

1 24 DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report
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A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # Z2022F12H31H IF F/E

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. @I A#E)
(ii) Financial risk management objectives and (i) BIBEMBSEAERKE (&)
policies (continued)
(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment (b) EEE b &EETE
(continued) (&)
The Group's internal credit risk grading REBE B A LS E R
assessment comprises the following BEHEBRIEA TR -
categories:
Internal Trade and bills  Other financial
credit rating Description receivables assets
B 2 EWNRIE
RMEEFTR HFHik REWEE HittemEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL — not 12-month ECL 12
1K 2B default and dose not have any past- credit-impaired 1218 AFEHIZ E &
due amounts 2 HITEHEEE |
REEFEHRRE - B I8 F {8 Ef B-W3HEEE
Gk BB
Doubtful There have been significant in credit Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL — not
KR risk since initial recognition through credit-impaired  credit-impaired
information development internally ZHfEHEEE 2HBEHEES
or external resources B-1IHEE B-WIEEER
RBAEMENESIINBEIR B8 BB (=]
[E\Bx B B IR HER A PR 1 AN
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset  Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
e is credit-impaired credit-impaired  credit-impaired
BRBRIEEREERE ZHRBEEE 2HEHEES
B-EERE B—EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that Amount is written Amount is written
i gH the debtor is in severe financial off off
difficulty and the Group has no EEHMIEERE COMIEERSE
realistic prospect of recovery #

BRBEBENMEH AR EENM R
B AEE B LY EKEFIAR
AJRE

FIREERERAR —g-=f58% |25



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £20224¥12H31H It F/&

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(ii) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk
exposures of the Group’s financial assets
which are subject to ECL assessment:

As at 31 December 2022

5. @IA%E)
(i) HEAMETEEEREE (&)

(b) FERERRBERN
(%)
TERFNAEEEREE
ME R R HAR XA
EEE R

R20226F12A31H

Gross
Internal credit carrying
rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount
A EEFTR 12X HRBEESE BAREE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Financial assets
cRMEE
Trade receivables Low risk (note (a)) Lifetime ECL (not credit- 126,923
(note 21) KR (HI5E@)) impaired)
B 5 RWRIE (M5E21) 2 HEHEEEE (L EER
B)
Bills receivables Low risk (note (a)) Lifetime ECL (not credit- 23,052
(note 21) KR (HI5E@)) impaired)
JEW & (B EE21) 2 HEHEEEE
(WIEEERIE)
Deposits and other Low risk (note (b))  12-month ECL 2,123
receivables (note 22) K& (KI5E(b)) 1218 ATEHRE E S
Ze Rk EMERFIA
(Mf3E22)
Cash and bank Low risk 12-month ECL 48,112
balances (note 24) KRB 1218 BFEHR{E E &1
e RIRTTHEE
(Ki5E24)
Pledged bank deposits  Low risk 12-month ECL 2,428
(note 24) 1K /= B2 1218 A e B {E E &5 18

EHEMRITER (M EE24)

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # F20224F12A31H I F/Z

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(ii) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)
Trade receivables (continued)
As at 31 December 2021

5. @IA%E)
(i) MRERTEEERBE (&)

(b) 1= m B KR E Rk
(&)

BESEKE (&)
72021912 H31H

Gross
Internal credit carrying
rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount
A BEETR 1282 AR EEEE BEREE
RMB’000
AR®T T
Financial assets
SREE
Trade receivables Low risk (note (a)) Lifetime ECL (not credit- 85,347
(note 21) KR (HI5E @) impaired)
B 5 RYGRIE (H5321) 2> HEHEEEE(LEEER
18)
Bills receivables Low risk (note (a)) Lifetime ECL (not credit- 7,980
(note 21) KR (HI5E@)) impaired)
FEU R (FsE21) 2 HEHEEEE
(W3 EERIE)
Deposits and other Low risk (note (b))  12-month ECL 57
receivables (note 22) (K& (FizE(b)) 1218 BB E SR
Re &AM I
(Mf3E22)
Cash and bank Low risk 12-month ECL 28,447
balances (note 24) KERK 128 A TEHE EEE
Re RIRTTHE
(Ki5E24)
Pledged bank deposits Low risk 12-month ECL 5,278
(note 24) KRR 128 ATEHEEEE

BEHEMRITER (M FE24)

FEIBXRERARNE —B--FFRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #&{Z2022F 12H31H IFF/E

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(ii) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(c)

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

Notes:

(a) For trade and bills receivables, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL.

(b) For the purposes of internal credit risk
management, the Group uses the latest
available financial and other information
about the debtors to assess whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. As at 31 December 2022 and
2021, these balances are either not past due
or do not have fixed repayment.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the
Group will not be able to meet its obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in
respect of settlement of trade payables and
its financing obligations, and also in respect
of its cash flows management. The Group's
objective is to maintain an appropriate level of
liquid assets and committed lines of funding to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

Management monitors the cash flows
forecasts of the Group in meeting its liabilities.

2022 Annual Report

5.

SRTHEZ)
(i) HEAMETEEEREE (&)

(b) 1= Mm@ B KR E Rk

(c)

(#%&)
GEE

(@) BLEZEWRHIANEWR
REMmME ~NEEER
B B B 75 ol 5 E RIS 9
BECAER MBS
EREBRZERRE-

(b) A EERREREMm
EAKEFERERAE
EAR RIS &
Hu&ER T HEERR
=G BVREREANR
1 10 220224 %2021
F12A318  Z S &6
i R Bl B sk I £ [ E 2

Eo
oA °

REE SR

RBEEEBRIEALEE R
REERHURMB SRS
—eBMEENFANEH2
BRABEMSRETHE
R ANEBNEEZ S BN
HNEREBMERTURE
HeneEB AEATR
BESRER - AEEEIEZ
BERBEEREKFZE S
HEHFRNEE KT - LA
NEEHERBNRSHE

FHHK

EEERNBTEEERE
EARSENRSRERR -



(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. @I A#E)
(ii) Financial risk management objectives and (i) BEREEEERBE(E)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) (c) RBELER(E)
The following table details the Group’s TR RBFRRNEEHR
remaining contractual maturity for its financial HEERBERHNERMEE
liabilities with agreed repayment periods. MRS D= mERR - B
The table has been drawn up based on the RETERETREBENR
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities MERERERASET
based on the earliest date on which the Group EWERNZNKEAH
may be required to pay. Specifically, bank Rl BpEms  MELRE
loans with a repayment on demand clause are FEEIEFARITE R
included in the earliest time band regardless AR THmiRrTiRE
of the probability of the banks choosing to ITEEBERNERTRENE - B
exercise their rights. The table includes both RBFANBERAEHS
interest and principal cash flows. To the e e WA EREATZHF
extent that interest flows are floating rate, K RBLIR G T E NS HR
the undiscounted amount is derived from EHRNAEHERE -5
interest rate curves at the end of the reporting % )8 v BRPR Th B A AN &£ E
period. The contractual maturity is based on AIRE Bk MR &R A
the earliest date on which the Group may be HAESTF o
required to pay.
Weight
average Ondemand Over 1year Over 2 years Total Total
effective  orwithin and within  and within undiscounted  carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5years cashflows  amount
MEYH  REXE RBE1FE  RBBFE AEBEL
ERAZ  MER MFR MR REEE  AREE
% RMB000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB'000 RMB000
% ARBTT ARETT ARBTRT ARETR ARBTR
At 31 December 2022 R202212831H
Non-derivative financial liabiliies  FEfT£ 2B & B
Trade and bills payables BARNTBERENRE - 68,656 - - 68,656 68,656
Other payables and accruals R ERFEREHER - 7,036 - - 7,036 7,036
Amount due to a related company FEff B8 5518 - 47 - - 47 447
Bank borrowings BRE 375 10,000 - - 10,000 10,000
86,139 - - 86,139 86,139
At 31 December 2021 202145124318
Non-derivative financial liabiliies  FEfT£ B8 E
Trade and bills payables BARMNTERENER - 38,011 = - 38,011 38,011
Other payables and accruals EtbEfARENER - 3614 = - 3614 3614
41,625 - - 41,625 41,625
FEBXEZERERAT —BZFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #&{Z2022F 12H31H IFF/E
5.

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3

during the year.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. E@MIHEE)
(iii) Fair value of financial instruments (iii) EMTENATLE
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and BREREMEEL N FETEZ
financial liabilities that are measured at fair rEFSHREERTHRERGZ
value on a recurring basis AR =]
The Group’s financial assets are measured at fair REBGREENSRERRIZ
value at the end of each reporting period. In NEEE - RNEFT AT ER
estimating the fair value, the Group uses market- AREBFHAASE MG BEE
observable data to the extent it is available. The e TRIBEEBANNEEZSES
following table gives information about how the fair SRIBEZATFEZER -
values of these financial assets are determined.
Fair value hierarchy: NHEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& BER B #Et
RMB‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARBTT
As at 31 December 2022 A2022%12H31H
Financial assets at FVTPL R A FZEABHEN
cREE
Listed equity securities EFTRAES 7,763 - - 7,763
Financial assets at FVTOCI QA FEFALMEZE
hENEHEE
Bills receivables (Note) FEUELE (M) = 23,052 = 23,052
As at 31 December 2021 420215128318
Financial assets at FVTPL QP A ABIEH
CRHEE
Listed equity securities TR AR 36,262 = = 36,262
Financial assets at FVTOCI RAFEFAHMEE
hENEREE
Bills receivables (Note) W ER (M) - 7,980 - 7,980

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # F20224F12A31H I F/Z

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(iii) Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (continued)

Note:

The fair values of bills receivables at FVTOCI included in
level 2 category have been determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted
cash flow analysis, with the most significant observable
input being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk
of counterparties. The higher the discount rate, the lower
the fair value is. Due to the short-term maturities of the
bills and the relatively low discount rates, fair values
approximated the principal amounts of the bills.

The management considers that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised
cost recognised in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values due to their short-term
maturities.

@I EE)
(i) EMIENLFEE)

BREMBENUAFHEHITEZ
rEFHEERTHEREZ
AFHE(E)

B 5

FEAS ZRBEBIM R A FERAR
fEERENERREZAFET
RFBERAEEEULIZARTER
ENMEBEE ETHREZNTAE
RBUABBARRIZHFHEE
EERERLIR K - BEIR RS - N FE
AR o B R A2 H A B &% Bh
BREPERE A FEERE K
TRAMEE

BEERA BHREHAZE  Rix
BB MR R HB I AG E
MEREERTRABURERR
BZREEREEAFERS-

FEIBXRERARNE —B--FFRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE

6.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt
which includes amount due to a related company and
bank borrowings as disclosed in notes 28 and 29, net
of bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits and
total equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and retained earnings.

Gearing ratio

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure regularly. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. The ratio is
calculated based on net debt and total equity.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was
as follows:

6.

EXRERERE

AEEEREANEBERBBREK
B35 AEMIERIEABRFE
I REARBB RS BAK
Ao A BERRELFHET

o

AEBEZERARBREBEFHE(E
R E28 K 291K 8 2 FE - R HSE 77 3K
HRRITEEHRRITERKLR
Z) BHEBRTERRARFEE A
EHESER(BREEEITRARR
BAaR)-

BEXRMEER

ARAEZTEMEHNEARB -ER
AEFN D ARAEEEEE
BARARESEEARBEOER
BEAXRBUHXZREBFRIESAR

=&
al=°

BEMRNEERBLEZMT

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBF T
Amount due to a related company FE — B E R R IA 447 -
Bank borrowings RITEE 10,000 -
10,447 =
Less: Bank balances and cash B IRITHEBR KRS (48,112) (28,447)
Pledged bank deposits EHEFRITER (2,428) (5,278)
Net debt B35 (40,093) (33,725)
Total equity @ E 350,383 269,579
Gearing ratio BEARBLLE N/A FiE A N/A 73 F

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # Z2022F12H31H IF F/E

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARDIHER
Revenue WA
(a) Analysis of revenue (a) BAZH
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET ARET T
Revenue from contracts with KEREELHZIA:
customers:
Recognised on a point in time basis R — b [&] 25 tE &8
Sales of faux leather chemicals SHEATE{LER 260,245 233,945
Sales of Chinese baijiu HERB 241,192 -
501,437 233,945
(b) Performance obligations for contracts with (b) BEEEHZEHNEF
customers
Manufacturing and sales of faux leather HERHEATLELER
chemicals and Chinese baijiu =P

Revenue from sales of faux leather chemicals and
Chinese baijiu are recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being when the goods have
been shipped to the customer’s specific location
(delivery). Following the delivery, the customer has
full discretion over the manner of distribution and
price to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility
when on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.

(c) Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contract with
customers

The Group has applied the practical expedient
under IFRS 15 so that transaction price allocated to
unsatisfied performance obligations under contracts
for sales of faux leather chemicals and sales of
Chinese baijiu are not disclosed as such contracts
have an original expected duration of one year or
less.

(c)

FEEXRERARDA

HEATE(CERmMBBNKRA
RERMEZEHEER(ERE
NEEZEPMEBEEMHB(ER
)RR - NRMHE - FFA
ERAEEMNDHT A REE
ERNHEERBAEETERE
WS EE miARE R AR M B R

O ERRR

EEFENZHBTENE
EFZX 5 E%

AER B B AR IR B PR B 75 e 5 2R A
FISHRABERER A Bt
ABREOEEATIFZLBMEHE

RBEBEHERNARBITRENEL
NRHER REARZEEHHN

RIRHRER A —FHAT -

“ECCEER

133



134

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE

7.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Operating segment information

The Group’s most senior executive management has been
identified as the chief operating decision maker (“CODM")
who reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources. Segment
information reported to the Board, being the CODM, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance, focuses on the types of goods or services
delivered or provided. This is also the basis upon which the
Group is organised and managed.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group was
principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales of
faux leather chemicals. Information reported to the
Group’s CODM for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessment, focused on the operating results
of the Group as a whole as the Group’s resources were
integrated and no discrete operating segment financial
information is available. Accordingly, no operating segment
information was presented.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
commenced the business of engaging in sales of Chinese
baijiu, and it is considered as a new operating and
reportable segment by the CODM. Therefore, the Group's
reportable and operating segments for the year ended 31
December 2022 are as follows:

(@ Faux leather chemicals — manufacturing and sales of
faux leather chemicals

(b)  Chinese liguor business — production and sales of wine
products, including Chinese baijiu

No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at
the above reportable segments of the Group.

2022 Annual Report
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WA K7 EBE R ()
gD WAL

AEBRSITREEERTIBERLER
RE(ZEREREE]) ERadA
SEO N RE - A EEE R DB
BR-MEFE(AE2LLERKE)
EHAEDELERKRFEDIREZ
DEPE R SRR ST 2
B IRIERRE - AR K E XA
BN e 2 B

HE2021F 128318 ILFE - AEFH
FERERERHEALIZLLER-
HRAEEEREF AW ED KL
ENBYBER HAAEEEFEL
BERREZHMUESIRER KT EER
BNER B IR E BB ERE-
Ht - WEZFEE DI ER -

HZE2022F12A31BILFE  AEH
MR EHERBERS HREBLK
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e Eitt - NEBNE £2022F 1278
3MEEFENERREEDIMOT

(@) AIREm—-—RERFEEAT
Xt
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # Z2022F12H31H IF F/E

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Operating segment information (continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

results by reportable and operating segments:

WARDEER (&)

ReENWER(E)
AT RARERBEREEDBE D
VAR B DT -

Year ended 31 December 2022 E22022F12A31HLLFEE
Chinese
Faux leather liquor
chemicals business Consolidated
ATLE{LER =i wE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ET R AR®T AR®T T
SEGMENT REVENUE 2 EBUA
External sales HNERSH & 260,245 241,192 501,437
Segment profit 7 BB K 11,679 82,813 94,492
Other income H A A 1,392
Other gains and losses H Wz R B8 (703)
Share of results of an DB E N R EE
associate (77)
Loss on disposal of financial H&ZAFEZ AER
assets at FVTPL LERMEEZERE (10,416)
Loss on fair value change of Z A FEF AR Z
financial assets at FVTPL TRMEELATE
HE)EIE (10,585)
Finance costs B 75 Bk 2N (403)
Unallocated corporate AoBLbERZ
expenses (11,033)
Group's profit before tax A& B 2 BR B ANE A 62,667

FEIBXRERARNE —B--FFRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022412H31H1FF/E
7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARDIER(E)

(continued)
Operating segment information (continued) REFIBER(AE)
Year ended 31 December 2021 HZE2021F12831HILEE
Chinese
Faux leather liquor
chemicals business  Consolidated
ATIE({LER SREES e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BF T ARBTF T ARBT T
SEGMENT REVENUE 7 EZBUT A
External sales SNER$H & 233,945 - 233,945
Segment profit 73 B4 A 12,249 - 12,249
Other income H b g A 2,824
Other gains and losses H b e & B 18 2,945
Share of results of an associate 5 {h B % A 7] ¥ 4% (36)
Loss on disposal of financial HEEAFEABE
assets at FVTPL LEMEEZEE (1,762)
Loss on fair value change of ~ EAFEFAEZZS
financial assets at FVTPL BEEZATFEED
E1E (11,700)
Unallocated corporate expenses & 7 Bt 1t % f Sz (5,996)
Group's loss before tax REBZBRBAEE (1,476)

1 3 6 DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

(continued)
Operating segment information (continued)

WARDEER (&)

RESWER(E)

are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment profit represents the
profit earned by each segment without allocation
of other income, other gains and losses, share
of results of an associate, loss on disposal of
financial assets at FVTPL, loss on fair value change
of financial assets at FVTPL, finance cost and
unallocated corporate expenses.

all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than investment in an associate, financial assets at
FVTPL and corporate assets.

all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
other than corporate liabilities.

FEEXRERARDA

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and N TNARNERIZEH D EEHDHEE
liabilities by reportable segments: REED -
2022 2021
20225 20215
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARBFT
Assets BE
Faux leather chemicals ATIEER 266,508 265,073
Chinese liquor business SHiESS 116,535 -
Unallocated corporate assets AOMEEEE 63,335 48,101
Consolidated total assets REEEARE 446,378 313,174
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETTT
Liabilities PHEE
Faux leather chemicals ALE(Em 42,030 42,827
Chinese liquor business SHESS 40,857 =
Unallocated corporate liabilities RAABRLGXBE 13,108 768
Consolidated total liabilities LReaEesE 95,995 43,595
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance MEERSESRIA N DR E RSB M
and allocating resources between segments: =
The accounting policies of the operating segments _ R IR e S S R R £ (] Y

At BUR (RP RE3Fr 3t ) A8 R -
’\* i M R & 0 BB EREX A g A -
EEPEE @EEP@H&U\ H W an
KR pEMERFRE  H
ERAVEFAEGZEREE

BB BRATEAABRZE
MEEZ A TEEHEE UK

AR AR EEREA
B EARNKRE B

FEAABRZeREEREE
BEN IBEESEEFZRK
/'\_LB °

BreEBEN EEGESRE
AI23RHEL -

“ECCEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #&{Z2022F 12H31H IFF/E

7.

(continued)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segment information (continued)

7. WARDHER (&)

REDWER(E)

Other segment information HEnSER
Faux leather Chinese liquor
chemicals business Unallocated Total
AIERER RS AAE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TrR AR®Trn AR®TR AR®T R
Year ended HZ2022F128318 1k
31 December 2022 EE
Capital expenditure (note (a) EAARFX (HH(a)) 27,593 - - 27,593
Depreciation of property, mE WEREETE
plant and equipment 6,925 - - 6,925
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ {FREAENE
assets 606 - - 606
Allowance for expected credit TEHAEEEIBREEH
losses, net 1,708 531 - 2,239
Faux leather  Chinese liquor
chemicals business Unallocated Total
AIEER S-S RAEE @ar
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARET ARETT
Year ended HZ2021F128318 1k
31 December 2021 EE
Capital expenditure (note (a)) ~ A7AREA (KizE(a)) 35,294 = = 35,924
Depreciation of property, WE WEREENE
plant and equipment 6,673 - - 6,673
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ {FREAENE
assets 606 - - 606
Allowance for expected credit TEHAEEEIBREEH
losses, net 481 - - 431
Note: B &

(a) Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # Z2022F12H31H IF F/E

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Operating segment information (continued)
Geographical information

The Group’s operations are principally in the PRC and all
its non-current assets are situated in the PRC.

The Group’s revenue are derived from the PRC and
overseas (i.e. Mexico, Turkey and Vietnam) based on the
location of goods delivered, as follows:

7.

WARDEER (&)

REIWER(E)
IEER

AEEETENTEEE BEMABIE
MEEEDNMNTE

AEBEETELEINARAFT £ H
HNBm)EENBAZAZNEY
HEESIAT

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T AR®EF T
The PRC s 497,849 229,514
Overseas SN 3,588 4,431
501,437 233,945

Information about a major customer FHEEREFNESR

Revenue from a customer during the years contributing
individually over 10% of the Group's revenue is as
follows:

KEFRNEBAEAEBKRASE &
10% 8 —ZEFHWALT :

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT
Customer A' ZEA -2 29,711
1 Revenue from sales of faux leather chemicals ! HEATIZLZ2RAKA
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% 2 HEBALRAEANEERIBEEE
of the total revenue of the Group for the corresponding 2 A TEE10%
year
FIEXERERAR —ZB-FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #&{Z2022F 12H31H IFF/E

8. OTHER INCOME

Statements

8. Htslx A

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR®EF T

Bank interest income RITH B A 181 893
Government grants (note) BT B (B =E) 695 1,432

Dividend income on financial assets at &2 FE{EE ABZE Y
FVTPL TRIEEZIRBIA - 253
Sundry income B A 516 246
1,392 2,824

note: Government grants represent various forms of subsidies
granted to the Group by the local government authorities
in the PRC for compensation of expenses incurred by the
Group. These grants are generally made for business support
and awarded to enterprises on a discretionary basis. The
Group also received government grants in respect of its
investments in the PRC. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies relating to these grants.

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

B A+ R 8 B 5 o B3 75 TR AT A R 1) X
SERENSER MR AR
MEAEEELNER -ZFHE
—RAREBXE THERTL
FoAREEFRERN B BENRE IR
XEFfe - EEzEHmeE M
HRBITIRIF R AE R

9. HttWmREE

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31MBLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFR ARETT

Loss on disposal of property, HEME WE KRR
plant and equipment &8

Written off of property plant and WEE M - BE K&
equipment

Exchange gain, net bE 3 U #5 )F 58

Bad debt recovery U o] 52 BR

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # Z2022F12H31H IF F/E

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BAFERR AR
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Interest on bank borrowings RITBEZFE 403 -
11. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 11. BRBIADER,(BE)
Profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging: BB A=A (ER) & MR AT &
THEEEY
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T
Auditor’s remuneration % EAT B & 666 850
Cost of inventories sold P& E A 307,739 195,070
Depreciation: e
— Depreciation of property, plant and —¥% - KE R REITE
equipment 6,925 6,673
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ —{f A EFTE 606 606
7,531 7,279
Less: amount included in cost of sales & : 5 A 845 5K AN #3118 (5,487) (4,910)
2,044 2,369
Provision for impairment loss under ECLET£2 T %8 B 2
model on: EHEEEEEXET
2B EE
— trade receivables — 8 ZEW A 2,239 478
— other receivables — H b e Y F B - 3
2,239 481
Directors’ remuneration = = E 1,832 1,173
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BIXRAK(TBEESEHM)
remuneration)
— wages, salaries, allowances and bonus — T & ~ %% 285 R IE4L 24,105 16,624
FIBEERARLT —B-_FFR
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11. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (continued)

11. BR%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022F12A31H IF F/&E

BIER,(E5E) (&)

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLLFE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
— contributions to retirement benefits  — iR {18 FI 5T 2 it 2k
schemes 3,319 2,378
27,424 19,002
Less: amounts included in cost of sales J& : 5+ A 45 & Ak 28 #2818 (9,863) (6,369)
17,561 12,633
Advertising expenses (included in EERY (GFAHEER
selling and distribution expenses) DiEFAR) 66,320 =
Research and development expenses A 3FA s (5t ASTIE %
(included in administrative and — B X)
general expenses) 9,618 9,276
Expenses for short term lease CHAIER X 1,257 365
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

12. FI88iB X

Year ended 31 December

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

BZ12A31BLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETFTT
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RE RSN
("EIT") ([EEEFmBH])
— Current income tax —BIEAFR1GT 23,385 1,184
Deferred tax (Note 30) PEAEF A (FEE30) (336) (60)
Total tax charge for the year FARIBY HBE 23,049 1,124

The PRC

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of its
operations in the PRC was calculated at tax rate of 25%
on the assessable profits for the Reporting Period, based
on the existing legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof, except as described below.

Zhejiang Sunlight Material Technology Co., Ltd. is
approved as “high and new technology enterprise”
and accordingly, it is subject to a reduced preferential
corporate income tax rate of 15% for the Reporting
Period.

Cayman Islands, BVI and Hong Kong

No Provision for taxation has been recognised for
companies incorporated in the Cayman lIslands, BVI and
Hong Kong as they are not subject to any tax during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Withholding Tax in Mainland China (“WHT")

According to the New Corporate Income Tax Law (“New
EIT Law"), distribution of profits earned by companies in
Mainland China since 1 January 2008 to foreign investors
is subject to withholding tax of 5% or 10%, depending
on the country of incorporation of the foreign investors,
upon the distribution of profits to overseas incorporated
immediate holding companies.

P

BTt ESN RIBRITED 2 ER
HEES AEERENTBE XL
PSB85 18 T A 1A 3 5 B 7 B0 B R A3
M NIR R 25 % 51 H

HTREFMHBRRARARENS
[ | Hitt - RS A -
HuRERLEMFRBEREI5%
B -

HEHE HKBELHEERTE
RHASHS EBEELHEREER
ARSI A B W E R T IB RS - R
ARZERAREE20224 %2021
F12A31HIEFEANEBET -

Hh B Py 3t TR A BE ([ TR0 )
RIBFEEAFPOE( HEHEREH
E D) ERRFEINEM KL B R
B B3 s A B - B A A R B
200851 A1 B AN EE D IRFT
Bk EX A g 1) 125 % 38010 % A9 Bt 2K 4%
TR - RF RN RE E MK
MFTEBRME °

FEIBXRERARNE —B--FFRH
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mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Withholding Tax in Mainland China (“WHT")
(continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the retained earnings of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries not yet remitted to holding
company incorporated outside of the PRC, for which no
deferred income tax liability had been provided, were
approximately RMB108,002,000 (2021: RMB63,290,000).
For this unrecognised amount, the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The income tax expense during the Reporting Period
can be reconciled to the profit/(loss) before tax per
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

12. FREHBExZ(E)

hEI R FES ([ FRHH D (&)

2022512 A31H » A& B /R B B
A A s AR EE F AR BRSNS A 1
B A AR B F (W& L FTHRIEE
FIBRafsE) B AR108,002F T
(20214 : AR¥63,290F JT ) #h %
ﬂ%é%ﬁﬁﬁ RN BB I
HEZEEOANKE BEREER
RAJBETE AT TE R A R SR #E[a]

BEMANFASRAX A EESBE
RE M2 E WS R AHR AR,
(BB HBRIT

comprehensive income as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR®ETFTT
Profit/(loss) before tax BELADE A, (EE) 62,667 (1,476)
Tax at applicable tax rate applicable to %3 f3 7 48 B8 B A7 12 )4 1| &Y
profits in the jurisdiction concerned  EAR K EHFIE 18,200 926
Tax effect of share of result of an FE1h — e B 2 R B FE 4B M B RS
associate wE 19 9
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AT NG T E
for tax purposes 5,908 2,202
Tax effect of income not taxable for — HERF U A BT 755 2
tax purposes (370) (697)
Effect attributable to the additional 5% B RO 35 A AN AR BE AU RE AN
qualified tax deduction relating to SEBMEREHN T E
research and development costs (2,404) (1,736)
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses  RIERHIABIENHRIETE 1,988 1,210
Tax concession i TR 2 (292) (790)
23,049 1,124
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A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

13. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 13. EEM<
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of REHARNEEETERD M ERA
the Company (including emoluments for services as KRB EFENE(BIEKEEARQT
employees/directors of the Group prior to becoming the EZAERAEERE " EENRE
directors of the Company) by entities comprising the Me)mT :

Group during the Reporting Period are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2022

HZ202512A310 L EE
Salaries,
allowance Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonus  contribution Total
He 2R
EZhe REVEA BMERL BAGHELR i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR®TR AR%TR AR®Tn AR%TR
Executive directors: BIES:
Mr. Chen Hua BRELE - 318 - 9 327
Mr. Lam Kam Kong Nathaniel SRR LA (R2022F
(Appointed on 25 May 2022) SH2BHEZRE) - 124 - 6 130
Mr. Tse Chun Chung MEPEE (20226
(Appointed on 25 May 2022) SASHEZ) - 124 - 6 130
Mr. Sun Jingang BamftE (R0226F
(Appointed on 25 May 2022) SA2SHEZ) - - - = -
Ms. Liu Jing fEat (R202F
(Resigned on 25 May 2022) SA25EEHT)
(note (if) (P &£ i) - - = = -
Ms. Zhu Jiangin REELLT (R2023%
(Resigned on 3 March 2023) 3A3EEE) - 317 = - 317
Mr. Wen Yongwen R A (20226
(Resigned on 16 May 2022) SA16HEHT) - 68 - 6 74
Mr. Gu Jianguo BERALE
(Resigned on 3 March 2023) (R2023%F3A30 ) - 354 - - 354
Independent non-executive BIFHTES:
directors:
Mr. Tian Jingyan AEELAE (R02F
(Resigned on 25 January 2022) 1A25B &) 7 - - - 7
Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen [ERLE 102 - - - 102
Mr. Au Hei Ching BEBELE (R202F
(Appointed on 25 January 2022) 1 B25AEZEE) 96 - - - 96
Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace FEf LS (R2022F
(Appointed on 25 January 2022) 1 B25AEZE) 96 - - - 96
Mr. Zheng Yu BF %4 (R2022%
(Appointed on 25 January 2022) 1 A25REZEE) 96 - - - 96
Ms. Zhou Xiaochun BRETL (R20226F
(Appointed on 25 January 2022) 1 A25REZE) 96 - - - 96
Ms. Yu Zhen B EZ T (20225
(Resigned on 25 January 2022) 1258 &HE) 7 - - - 7
500 1,305 - 21 1,832

FEIBEERERAT —Bo-FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £20224¥12H31H It F/&

13. DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS (continued)

13. EEME (&)

Year ended 31 December 2021

HE20215128318 L5
Salaries,
allowance Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonus  contribution Total
Y= 41
ExHe  REWER BEEL RIGHEIER @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:R
Executive directors: BTES:
Mr. Chen Hua RExE - 274 - 15 289
Ms. Liu Jing fEat - - - - -
Ms. Zhu Jiangin RAEELT - 277 - - 277
Ms. Li Xiangyu (Resigned on 24 BrFiE (RonF
November 2021) 11A24BEHT) - 258 - 16 274
Ms. Wong Yee Nor (Appointed on kA& (R20214
30 July 2021 and resignedon 10~ 7A30BEZTR
December 2021) (note (iii) 7202112108
BE) (B (i) - - - - -
Mr. Wen Yongwen BAUEA (R2021F
(Appointed on 24 November 2021) 11 A24REZ ) - 20 - 1 21
Mr. Gu Jianguo BREILA (20215
(Appointed on 10 December 2021) 12 810BEZT) - 12 - - 12
Independent non-executive directors: B FH{TES:
Mr. Tian Jingyan RRa%E (R2024F
(Resigned on 25 January 2022) 1A2ABT) 100 - - - 100
Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen fEREL 100 - - - 100
Ms. Yu Zhen Wa &t (20224
(Resigned on 25 January 2022) 1A25B ) 100 = = = 100
300 841 - 3 1173
Notes: Bt 5

(i) During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the

position of chief executive officer is vacant.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2022, Ms. Liu
Jing agreed to waive her emolument of approximately

RMB48,000.

(iii)  During the year ended 31 December 2021, Ms. Wong
Yee Nor agreed to waive her emolument of approximately

RMB44,000.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2022 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown were mainly for
their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group. The independent
non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, there were no amounts paid or
payable by the Group to the directors or any of the highest
paid individuals set out in Note 14 as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. Except for Ms. Liu Jing, there was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the Reporting Period.

EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees included 0 (2021: 3)
executive directors of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2022. The emoluments of the remaining
5 (2021: 2) highest paid employees who are neither
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

13.

14.

EEME @)
FIRITESNMEER P RRER
AAEEARBRAKREETHHR
Bo EXFRIRBIMIERTESTNME
TESRRERERRRESRMEN
AR A% ©

REEHA - AL B (7 E =K
FIARTE A &REHMA LT E
I ERIRE S DA S AN AN 5 [ B 1) 22
BB EE - RS HR BREF
TN MBEERELRBRES
(AT B < Ay 22 3k

IEESHMESHME

HZE202F12A31BIEFENRE
= ES 804K (20214 : 34)
RABBITESE - 88 55 (20214 -
2Z)EARRAREFTKERHITHRAEN
EeFMEENMESNT

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind #4285 X E W& A 2,666 555
Contributions to retirement RRTE A FT B 50
benefits schemes 54 46
2,720 601

The number of remaining highest paid employees who are
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company whose
emoluments fell within the following bands is as follows:

HFHBNIATHRENG TIERAGE
ERRSTHRAEBNESHFHES A
T

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31BLLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
Nil to HK$1,000,000, equivalent to £ 21,000,000 7T (FHE R
RMB854,000 (2021: RMB830,000) A R #854,0007T)
(20214 : AR #¥830,0007T) 5 2
FIMERRERAT —B--FEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE

15. DIVIDENDS 15. RE
No dividend was paid, declared or proposed for ordinary R2022F - WERA QR EEBZIRE
shareholders of the Company during 2022, nor has any I EIRKBZRMNRE  B®RE
dividend been proposed since the end of the Reporting HARAARNTEZZRZETMAKRE
Period (2021: RMB Nil). (20214 : ARBZ L)

16. PROFIT/(LOSS) PER SHARE 16. BR=EF (E518)
The calculation of the basic profit/(loss) per share HRFRERSF (EE) HREAR
during the period is based on the profit for the year NEHEA AR E RGO ARE
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately 21,851,00070(20214F : ESE AR
RMB21,851,000 (2021: loss of RMB2,600,000) and 2,600,0007T) R AR EBE BHITIRE
the weighted average number of ordinary shares I HE S 15 £01,282,191,781 3% (20214F :
in issue during the period of 1,282,191,781 (2021: 1,146,301,370/% ) »

1,146,301,370).

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2022 2021
2022F 20214
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to AR FIHEHB AEIEEREF,
owners of the Company (RMB’000) (B1E) (AR®BTT) 21,851 (2,600)
Weighted average number of ordinary 3@ & hntE FH & (FA%)
shares (‘000) 1,282,192 1,146,301
Basic profit/(loss) per share (RMB cents) &I E A% F|, (Eig)
(AR®D) 1.70 (0.23)
No diluted loss per share for both 2022 and 2021 were A7 4 2 5120224 R20214F 2 5 ik i
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in SEEE  JIRERE B 20224 K20214
issue during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 1AM BIFEEYEEED HITER
2021. f% o
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A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # Z2022F12H31H IF F/E

As at 31 December 2022, the buildings of approximately
RMB22,488,000 (2021: RMB24,127,000) were pledged

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥ -BERRZE
Furniture,
fixtures
and office  Plant and Motor Construction
Buildings equipment  machinery vehicles in progress Total
B #ER HER
BF BORE B3] hE HRIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFTT ARBTn ARETT ARBTR ARETR
Cost 2
At 1 January 2021 20211 A18 45,700 4,455 52,929 1,843 353 105,280
Additions NE 368 221 3,611 272 31,452 35,924
Transfer #if - 11 1,870 - (1,881) -
Disposals RE - (2,145) (702) (193) = (3,040)
At 31 December 2021 and  #2021F12A31A K
1 January 2022 20221718 46,068 2,542 57,708 1,922 29,924 138,164
Additions NE 32 226 2,309 1,927 23,099 27,593
Transfer &% 43,610 - 333 - (43,943) -
Written off s - - (20) - - (20)
Disposals RE = = = (321) (824) (1,145)
At 31 December 2022 2022512318 89,710 2,768 60,330 3,528 8,256 164,592
Accumulated depreciation ~ Rit#E
At 1 January 2021 20211 A18 11,459 3,460 29,233 1,413 - 45,565
Charge for the year FRXH 2,403 389 3,724 157 - 6,673
Disposals RE = (2,028) (667) (183) - (2,878)
At 31 December 2021 and  #2021412A318 K
1 January 2022 2022F1A818 13,862 1,821 32,290 1,387 - 49,360
Charge for the year ERXH 2,414 217 4,067 227 - 6,925
Written off i3 = = (19) = = (19)
Disposals RE - - - (181) = (181)
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12A318 16,276 2,038 36,338 1,433 - 56,085
Net carrying amount EEFE
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12A8318 73,434 730 23,992 2,095 8,256 108,507
At 31 December 2021 m2021%F12A318 32,206 721 25,418 535 29,924 88,804

to bank for bills payables and bank borrowings.

2022412 A31 8 + €9 AR #22,488,000
Te(20214F : AREE24,127,0007T) AY1E

FERENRBERRTEEER TR

7o

FEEXRERARDA

“ECCEER
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mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE

At 31 December 2021

M2021F12H31H

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. FREEE
Land use
rights
=+ i 55 FH 4
RMB'000
ARET T
Cost 2N
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and MR20215F1A1H ~ 2021F12AH318 »
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 20221818 X20229F12H31H 30,313
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1A81H 2,819
Charge for the year FRASZH 606
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R2021F12H31H &2022F1A1H 3,425
Charge for the year FRAZH 606
At 31 December 2022 72022%12H31H 4,031
Net carrying amount BREFE
At 31 December 2022 72022%12H31H 26,282

26,888

The right-of-use assets are land use rights located in the
PRC which are under medium lease. The lease contracts
were entered into for fixed term of 50 years. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of the
right-of-use assets of approximately RMB16,008,000
(2021: RMB16,399,000) was pledged to bank for the
Group’s bills payables and bank borrowings.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;Z2022%F12/31H 1L F/Z
19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. R—REBE QAT 2R

2022 2021

202245 20214

RMB’'000 RMB‘000

ARBTFR ARETT

Cost of investment in an associate B & R R 2 IR E AR 3,000 3,000
Share of post-acquisition loss and other 25 UcBE 14 &518 & H At
comprehensive loss ZHEE (113) (36)
2,887 2,964
Details of the Group's associate at the end of the RE|EEARN - REBEB S QAR BFE
Reporting Period is as follow: wm
Attributable equity
Place and date of Registered/ interest and voting Principal
Name of associate incorporation paid up capital rights held by the Group activities
1R B AL it B SmMER,/ EEERAEN
L NGEEE SEEE: BREX EERERRRERE IERH
2022 2021

2022 20215

IR RIEE The PRC, RMB15,000,000 20% 20% Manufacturing
IR & {£ /2 B Zhejiang Ketian 31 December 2020 of faux leather
Water Technology Co., Ltd* chemicals
("Ketian Water”)

HOLRERK MERHR g ARE HEATZE
BEREARF 20204124318 15,000,0007C t2m
(TRRKHED)

* English name is for identification purpose only. * HYEZTBEMEER -

FIREERERAR —g-—58 |5
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19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Summarised financial information of the associate below
which represents amounts shown in the associate’s
financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £20224¥12H31H It F/&

19. R—EBE QT 2 Em ()

BERRZMBEMBINMT  %F
BRE TR IR BRI iR R R B
ZBE N R RAFIRZ £

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

A20225F R20214F

12H31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR% T AREF T

Current assets MBEE 4,304 1,656
Non-current assets EMBEE 18,033 13,252
Current liabilities mEaE 763 87
Non-current liabilities SEREEE 7,141 =
Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

BZE2022F  #HZE2021F

12H31H 12A31H

IEFEE WFEE

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%T AREF T

Revenue A - -
Loss for the year REEEE (388) (179)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ZANEE 2 HEEE45E (388) (179)

2022 Annual Report
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A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # Z2022F12H31H IF F/E

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

19. R—E =

DA 2R

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB AR B E R AR S B SRR
information to the carrying amount of the interest in FRAERRE S Al ERIREER S
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial AE :
statements:
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
20224 20214
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETF T
Net assets of the associate B N RIMEEFE 14,433 14,821
Proportion of the Group’s ownership  ZRE BBk 2 B ILAE L 151
interest in the associate 20% 20%
Carrying amount of the Group’s REERBE AR RN REE
interest in the associate 2,887 2,964
INVENTORIES 20. #&
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Faux leather chemicals ATE(LER
— Raw materials — EME 11,112 19,191
— Work in progress — B 1,174 1,270
— Finished goods — Bk 12,050 10,815
24,336 31,276
Chinese baijiu =hi]
— Finished goods —BIRK 73,906 -
98,242 31,276
wEEERERERAT —s-—f¢8% |53
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £20224¥12H31H It F/&

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21. EEEWFIENREWRELE
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTF T
Trade receivables (note i) Z 5 e oxaE (FiaEi) 126,923 85,347
Less: provision for impairment R ERE (5,209) (2,970)
121,714 82,377
Bills receivables (note ii) FE U = 4R (BT i) 23,052 7,980
Total trade and bills receivables — net 48 5 FEUCGEUE [ BN 15 — H58 144,766 90,357
notes: B & -
(i)  The following is an ageing analysis of gross amount of ) EBSRWHBRERREZEHZT
trade receivables presented based on the invoice date: MBRE DT
2022 2021
2022F 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBTT
Within 30 days 30K 54,873 27,144
31 to 90 days 31£90K 37,553 36,562
91 to 180 days 91£180K 19,308 14,589
181 to 365 days 1812365k 13,220 5,669
Over 1 year BE1E 1,969 1,383
126,923 85,347

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # Z2022F12H31H IF F/E

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

()

21. EFRRRERERERE (&)

notes: (continued) MieE: (&)
(continued) (i) (%)
Movements on the provision for impairment of trade 7N = B Z 5 e Uk R TR R (E B e e B
receivables are as follows: BT :
2022 2021
2022F 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET R ARBTT
At the beginning of the year REA 2,970 2,564
Provision for impairment B 2,239 478
Written-off 7T 85 - (72)
At the end of the year RER 5,209 2,970

(ii)

The assessment on ECL are set out in Note 5(ii)(b) to
consolidated financial statements.

EFRRACGEBERENFHEREGS
B 75 3 < Y 525N (b) ©

The following is an ageing analysis of gross amount of (i) BREBRLFREZABHZIINER
bills receivable presented based on the invoice date: oM
2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T ARETF T
Within 30 days 30K 8,471 5,896
31 to 90 days 31290k 10,267 1,292
91 to 180 days 91E180K 4,314 792
181 to 365 days 1812365K - 100
Over 1 year BiE1 = -
23,052 7,980
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all bills receivables are 20224 K2021F12 4318 A&
with a maturity period of less than 6 months. EWE WA REN I HERARS D
HR61E A o
The Group manages its bills receivables using the business AREEEEREKEZEMESER B
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting ZREWBEHNEeREREEZE
contractual cash flows and selling such financial assets SREE Al BIERER SRS
and hence, they are categorised as financial assets B ESRHBEHEAURATE A
measured at fair value through other comprehensive HEMeEKRTENSREE -
income under IFRS 9.
FEBXEZERERAT —BZFFR
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mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE

21.

22.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised
in their entirety

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has endorsed certain
bills receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China (the
“Derecognised Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order
to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with
a carrying amount in aggregate of RMB152,987,000
(2021: RMB136,428,000). The Derecognised Bills had a
maturity of one to six months at the end of the Reporting
Period. In accordance with the applicable laws in the
PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right of
recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). Nevertheless, the opinion
of the Directors, the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills
as the credit risk retained by the Group is insignificant.
Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the associated
trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss from the
Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills
and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Bills is equal to their carrying amounts. In
the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the Group'’s
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are not
significant.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

21.

22,

BEZRWREREVRREE @)
FERLEANCERESHEE

2022128318 AEEREE T
HEE S SR EAARK152,987
Fr(20214F : AR¥136,428F7T)E
EhBERRITES ZE TRERER
(TR IFTERER |) - AAE SN 2 1
JEREME SEMFIE - RIEEREER
HMEHR—ZEAARNEE - BIEFEH
BAERE WAEBRBRITEL AR
IEREENFEABERAEER
HEBR([FELHE]) - BRENY - ES
RE ARAEBFREBHEERRBRI
TEX HAEBEEBRERRIEER
ZERE RIS R Bk Eit - B
ERIEEREIEERRENAAREA
BEARBEHE 5 R F0E - A EBGE
B2HEELIEREERBEZERIE
BREENRUBREREZEAES
BEBESRERAE - EERE &
SEFEL2HKLIEREENATE
W REK -

TN FIR - 1S K& H MWK
|

As at 31 December

M12H831H

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBF T

Other receivables, net of allowance Hib W RIE - MR FEHEE
of ECL EiaRE 174 54
Deposits B 1,946 =
Prepayment TEfFRIE 4,490 2,399
6,610 2,453

2022 Annual Report
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24,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # Z2022F12H31H IF F/E

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 23.

BRAVEFABZNEREE

As at 31 December

MW12831H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFR ARETT

Listed securities FHES
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — A& 2 IR N33

The listed equity securities are classified as current as
the management expects to realise these financial assets
within twelve months after the Reporting Period. The
listed equity securities are stated at fair values which are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 24.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

(@) Cash and cash equivalents

7,763 36,262

HREEBEPNREHR T @A
HOBB/REY  ETRAFRZSE
MSHREEE 2 A FETIRK-

RERAEEEYREIEIFR
TEX
(a) RERBLEEY

As at 31 December

M12A318
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTRT ARBTET

Cash at bank and on hand FITRFERE

Cash at banks deposit earn interest at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates.

As at 31 December 2022, bank balances and cash
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to approximately RMB47,092,000 and (2021:
RMB19,732,000) RMB is not a freely convertible
currency in the PRC and the remittance of funds out
of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. For the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents denominated in RMB located in Hong
Kong are not subject to the foreign exchange
control.

48,112 28,447

RITHERRERIEFHRITER
2R 125 B R BRERH.B, o

MR20229F12 8318 » Z"NEE A A
REAEZRITEHBRIRE ALY
A B #47,092,0007% (20214 :
AR #19,732,0007T)° A REER
FEIWIEATERLBRHEE @
R B335 HINE SR 7B 38 5F R BT
TE B HINEE & 45 Bl B £ 48 o AR &R
EREBUARBTENREES R
REEBYBAZINEEHIFER o

FEIBXRERARNE —B--FFRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #&{Z2022F 12H31H IFF/E

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

(b) Pledged bank deposits

As at 31 December 2022, bank deposits of the
Group of approximately RMB2,428,000 (2021:
RMB5,278,000) are pledged as collateral for issuing

bills payables (Note 25).

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

2. BERRSEEYRESEAR

THREME)

(b) SEABITER
2022128318 A& B4
A R #2,428,0007C(20214F :
AR#¥5,278,0007T) BIER1T1E K
EEF ERENEBITERNK
e (fEE25) 0

25. EZENREREARE

As at 31 December

R128318
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBTET

Trade payables
Bills payables

B 5 RNEIA
RN RIE

The average credit period from suppliers is up to 30 to
90 days. The following is an ageing analysis of trade
payables presented based on the invoice date at the end

of the Reporting Period:

60,562 20,418
8,094 17,593
68,656 38,011

HERERHRNFEEERZRRA30E
90K - RIEMKRE 5 BB
SRH2FIHRESTEIINT

As at 31 December

M12A31A8
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFR ARETT

Within 30 days
31 to 90 days
91 to 180 days
181 to 365 days
Over 1 year

30K
31290K
91E180K
181E365K
i1

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all bills payables are
with a maturity period of less than 6 months.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2022 Annual Report

51,577 13,655
6,300 6,098
1,930 511

283 16
472 138
60,562 20,418

20224 202112 H318 » FT A JE
NEENEIEEME D R6@EA -



Notes to

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # Z2022F12H31H IF F/E

26. Htt BN RERETEA

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBF T
Accrued staff costs JEEH 8 TR 1,812 1,057
Accrued expenses and other payables fE=TFH S [z H {th fE 1~ 2018

(note (a)) (H3E(@)) 6,072 3,498
Contract liabilities (note (b)) A RAE D)) 609 297
8,493 4,852

note: B3 -
(@) The balances as at 31 December 2022 included amounts (@) 2022412 A31H 2 Er B E e 3E

due to non-controlling interests of approximately
RMB3,525,000, are unsecured, interest free and repayable

on demand.

(b) Contract liabilities related to sales of faux leather (b)
chemicals contracts. All contracts are for periods within
one year. Entire amount of the contract liabilities balance
at the beginning of the year was recognised as revenue

PR RE RS R IE 4 A R #53,525,0007T
A B AR ENR(EE -

EHEBEBFRATELLEREES
2 FTBAHERE A—FN - FP46
HEERENE IS EHIREZ2022
F12A31 B IEFEARERBEA

during the year 31 December 2022.

As at 1 January 2021, contract liabilities amounted

approximately to RMB232,000.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amounts of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

The Group received certain amount from customers
as deposits before the sales of faux leather chemicals

contracts are completed.

27. DEFERRED INCOME

R2021F1A1H AN ABEEEA
#) NR¥5232,0007T ©

FECDHERANBESHEIARN
TR

FEERATEBRFESHT
RZAE BEPWEE THRIEBER
B&-o

27. EFEWA
As at 31 December

M12H831H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTET
Assets related governments grants BEMBOBAHD 547 684
TEIBEERERAT —T-_FFR
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mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £20224¥12H31H It F/&

27. DEFERRED INCOME (continued) 27. EIEWA (&)

Movement of assets related government grants: BEMBNBINTEEE :
RMB'000
AR®ETFTT
At 1 January 2021 72021F1H18 821
Credited to profit or loss ST ABZE (137)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 72021612 8318 KX2022F1A1H 684
Credited to profit or loss ST ABZE (137)
At 31 December 2022 72022%12831H 547

Government grant of approximately RMB1,300,000 was
received in 2017 in relation to the subsidy for acquisition

of certain machinery.

The carrying amount of deferred income of the Group

R2017F B WEBBFE B A R EE
1,300,000 * E2 UG B& 35 T #E 25 Ol B
B -

AEBELERANKEER RS BB

analysed for reporting purposes as: DA
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2022 2021
22022% 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
Current portion meEnEs s 137 137
Non-current portion EmENE N 410 547
547 684

28. AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 28.

The amount due to a related company is unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

PE{S — I BE A RIFKIR
Bt —MEERARBEARER £
BRAREREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # F20224F12A31H I F/Z
29. BANK BORROWINGS 29. RITEE

As at 31 December
M®12H31H

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AR®BT T AR®ETFTT

Bank borrowings — secured RITEE-—FER 10,000 -
Less: amounts shown under A N =R =N i -

current liabilities 10,000 =
Amounts shown under ERBAEBE TR

non-current liabilities - =

According to the repayment schedule, the bank BIEEBEES  BITESEIRIUT
borrowings are repayable as follows: BREE
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTFR ARETT

Within one year —F R 10,000 =
As at 31 December 2022, bank borrowings of MR2022%F 128318 RITEEHAR
approximately RMB10,000,000 was denominated in RMB #10,000,0007T LA A R #EEHE (2021
(2021: Nil). &)

The ranges of effective interest rates (which equal to ASBREENERME(FRE OF
contracted interest rates) on the Group's borrowings are K)EEWMT -

as follows:

As at 31 December

M128318
2022 2021
20224 20214
Fixed rate borrowings EEMEEE 3.75% -

FEIBXRERARNE —B--FFRH
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mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #&{Z2022F 12H31H IFF/E

29.

30.

BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 29. RITEE(#)
Assets of the Group pledged to secure the bank AERBITEEMEBENAREETREE
borrowings comprises: BFE
As at 31 December
M12831H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®ET T
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16,008 -
Building S 22,488 —
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 30. EXEBBEEE
The components of deferred tax assets recognised in A PIFMRNE AERAELERIEE
the consolidated statement of financial position and the ERD RBMERRNNLEOT

movements during the Reporting Period are as follows:

Provision of

impairment

WAE R

RMB’000

AR¥TT

At 1 January 2021 20211 H18 385
Credited to profit or loss (Note 12) s ABE (fsE12) 60
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 202112 A31H %2022F1/51H 445
Credited to profit or loss (Note 12) T ABZE(MEE12) 336
At 31 December 2022 7"2022512A31H 781

Note: B & -

As at 31 December 2022, no deferred tax asset has been 72022912 A318 » R ARBETEBIAR K &
recognised in respect of approximately 22,010,914 (2021: TR - I gL BB E £ 2 A A RIE
RMB9,963,000) of unused tax losses arising in Hong Kong due BEAOARE22,010,9147T (20214 : A
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Such losses may K #9,963,0007T ) lERIEIEF T E E ° 3%
be carried forward indefinitely. EEErER AL E -

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report
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A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and/
or rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include any directors and employees of
the Company, including all executive directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries. The Scheme became
effective on 10 February 2020 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is
an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The
maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
option in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

The share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their subsidiaries, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

1. BIREET S

ARBRAERETE(FE]) B
HERAHAREERGERIELERZA
BERSEERHEEBHLERER- %
e A ERSEEBREARRIEM
E=ZlEE BREARRNMENBLR
BB T B ITE F - 51 8110202042
A10B AR BRIFERTTRMEHERT
BRIKEZARI0FABR

RIBET S RS EER LR RITEE
RN E REEFNEITER
AR BMEAREED ETROE10% -
REM12EAHER RE SRS
HRAERBPEEBREMNA THITZ
RO EE - AARBRMEM
EBITIRN 1% RR o [EE — &%
B 38 1 R B8 2 FE A i R B R X B
RARE Ltk

BYARRIES 1TTHERSIEEZR
R FEEMBHEA L BRERS
TEBIIERITE S LN R
E12fE B BEA B FARR—F
FTERRS — BB UIERTEERH
ERIM B R A 2 TR EREBRBAR
RIMEIERF R B B 1TAR (D 20.1% 3 42
BEREARAFTBRMRELAHZE
5t &) #8:385,000,0008 7T » 2B
RRIRRAREEERE -

FEIBEERERAT —Bo-FFR
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mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #&{Z2022F 12H31H IFF/E

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 14 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
would be determined by the directors. The exercise
price of the share options would be determined by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of the offer of the share options, which must
be a business day; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer,
provided that the subscription price shall not be lower
than the nominal value of the shares.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the Company did not grant any share options to
directors, employees or other parties. There were no
outstanding share options as at 31 December 2022 and
2021.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report

1. BIRERT &)

BRHBkigEs 2O RELH B MEFT
TAERBEARAINEGHIBTZA
EREREM - REBEE Z1TEH
HEFSET BREZITEEHES
BEE WA FSERUTZERSE ()
ARBBMDRBREZEDBH(LBA
REZBR)EBRZKHE : Kii)
ERZHEHAAER S BARRR
MRBE R 2 FH W E - HEREE
PEERBEE-

R E20224F K2021912 8318 1
FE AQRAUEMNES - EEXHE
75 5 1A BB IR R 0 7R20224F
2021128318 ERITENER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # Z2022F12H31H IF F/E

32. SHARE CAPITAL

32. AR

Details of movements of share capital of the Company RARHRASEFIBOT

are as follows:

Number Share
of shares Capital
R&HEE (&S
RMB’000
ARBTT
Authorised: ERE ¢
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 7120211818 - 20215
2021 and 31 December 2022, 12A31H K 20225
ordinary share of US$0.0005 each 128310 8REE
0.00053% T Z AR 2,000,000,000 6,700
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRER
At 1 January 2021 7R2021%1 H1H 1,000,000,000 3,497
Placing of new shares (Note (a)) [ EEAC))) 200,000,000 655
At 31 December 2021 7KR2021%12H31H 1,200,000,000 4,152
Placing of new shares (Note (b)) e & # AR (BT 52 (b)) 240,000,000 810
At 31 December 2022 72022%12H31H 1,440,000,000 4,962
FEBXEZERERAT —BZFFR

165



166

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

On 9 April 2021, the Company completed a share placing
for an aggregate for 200,000,000 shares at a placing
price of HK$0.240 per share to independent investors.
The gross proceeds from the placing was approximately
HK$48,000,000 (equivalent to RMB40,216,000), the net
proceeds was approximately HK$46,500,000 (equivalent
to RMB38,959,000) and HK$45,718,000 (equivalent
to RMB38,304,000) was recognised at share premium.
Details of the placement are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 9 April 2021.

On 29 August 2022, the Company completed a share
placing for an aggregate for 240,000,000 shares at a
placing price of HK$0.180 per share to independent
investors. The gross proceeds from the placing
was approximately HK$43,200,000 (equivalent to
RMB37,485,000), the net proceeds was approximately
HK$42,580,000 (equivalent to RMB36,948,000) and
HK$41,645,000 (equivalent to RMB36,138,000) was
recognised at share premium. Details of the placement
are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 29
August 2022.

All the shares issued ranked pari passu in all respects with
the existing shares in issue.

2022 Annual Report

32. RA& (&)

GEE

(a)

(b)

MR2021F4 898 KA & %K I
Bl £ EFR0.2408 TR B IR E
% it & 4 $£200,000,0000% i 15 2
BNERE -BEEZMERBERAER
#948,000,000/ 7T (FHE R A R
40,216,0007T) ' FT1S RIB SR 3
#946,500,000/ 7T (HE RN A R
38,959,0007T ) JA % 45,718,000/
7t (FAE R AKR%38,304,0007T) B
ERMDaEER EHES 2FE
HARART HHAE2021F4H9H

ZRE

202248 H298 ' AR & Ak I
A& B EAR0.180B TR BILILE
% Bt & 4 $£240,000,000/% i 5 2
BROME -REZFMSRBLE
/43,200,000 7T (FHE RN AR
37,485,0007T ) ' FT{S RIBF R A
#942,580,000/ 7T (FHE RN AR
36,948,0007T ) JA % 41,645,000/
7t (HAE R ARK%36,138,0005T) B
ERDEEER EEES ZFE
AN A AR B H 5202298 A29

BZR&Ee

MBEERTERONMETEHERSE
ERTERNDZERFMHA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # F20224F12A31H I F/Z

33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details the cash flows and
non-cash changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from
financing activities. Except as disclosed below, there were
no non-cash changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from
financing activities.

33. REEBELENEBEYHK

TRAVAEEREEDELENAE
MRS RENMIFRSEE - BR T XH
BEIN ARERESTHELNAE

WHEIRCEEH -
Amount due
to a related Bank
company borrowings Total
B —
BERTARE RITEE wat
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTT ARETT

At 1 January 2021, M20211 /418 -

31 December 2021 and 2021F12A318 &

1 January 2022 20221 H1H - - -
Change from financing cash MERESREEE -

flows:
Interest paid ERFE = (403) (403)
Proceed from bank borrowings  R{THEEFTSIA - 10,000 10,000
Advance from a related company F&E A G® 447 - 447

447 9,597 10,044

Other change: Hib&g)
Interest expense AMEFHZ - 403 403
At 31 December 2022 M2022%12H31H 447 10,000 10,447

FIREERERAR —s-—x58 |G
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mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #&{Z2022F 12H31H IFF/E

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the

34. ARBFBMRRRKHE

(a) ARAFHBARRT

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Company
2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
e AR®Tx ARET T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries R—KHBRRNKE 36,000 36,000
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 7,171 -
Prepayments and TE A RRIE & At fE R IE
other receivables 2,498 161
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEUS B A FIFIE 55,044 19,046
Financial assets at FVTPL RAFET ABRA SR
BE 7,763 36,262
Bank balances and cash IR1TERR NI 889 8,055
73,365 63,524
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals Hih eS8 ket E R 737 768
Amounts due to subsidiaries S NGRS 2,791 2,791
3,528 3,559
Net current assets REBEEFE 69,837 59,965
Total assets less HEERRBEE
current liabilities 105,837 95,965
Net assets BEEZFE 105,837 95,965
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital ¥ 4,962 4,152
Reserves & 100,875 91,813
105,837 95,965
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # Z2022F12H31H IF F/E

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

(b) AR EEE

34. RNRTB MR R R IEE (8)

Share Exchange Accumulated Total
premium reserve losses equity
R E E R RAER L £
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT ARETRT AR%TR
At 1 January 2021 R®2021E1 818 128,416 - (58,239) 70,177
Loss for the year EREE = = (16,066) (16,066)
Other comprehensive loss FREMZEEBRE
for the year - (602) - (602)
Total comprehensive loss FREABEERE
for the year - (602) (16,066) (16,668)
Issue of shares under placing  RIEE €17 39,561 - - 39,561
Transaction costs attributable to 1R#&E & #17k% (7
issue to shares under placing {5 S A (1,257) - - (1,257)
At 31 December 2021 and ~ R2021F12A318 K
1 January 2022 2022%1R18 166,720 (602) (74,305) 91,813
Loss for the year FABRE - - (29,783) (29,783)
Other comprehensive income  FRE {1 2 EUA
for the year - 2,707 - 2,707
Total comprehensive income  FERZEMRA LS
for the year - 2,707 (29,783) (27,076)
Issue of shares under placing ~ RIEREE/TR 7 36,675 - - 36,675
Transaction costs attributable to 1RIEE & 317k 7
issue to shares under placing 15X S (537) - - (537)
At 31 December 2022 R2022912A31H 202,858 2,105 (104,088) 100,875

FEIBXRERARNE —B--FFRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £20224¥12H31H It F/&

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(c) Distributability of reserves

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company may be
applied for payment of distributions or dividends to
shareholders provided that immediately following
the date on which the distribution or dividend is
proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves
of the Company as at 31 December 2022 was
RMB98,770,000 (2021: RMB92,415,000).

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES
TRANSACTIONS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions
and balances with its related parties during the Reporting
Period:

(a) Recurring transaction

34. RNR B BMR R R IEE (E)

() fEEzDE
REFASBHESRRE  AARH
P34 B RJ AR IR TR AR 32 A 20 I
AR EEBEREL AT D IR
KB 2 BHIR - AR R]ZAREH
KRB EEBBREPINBHNE
75 o

AAR2022F12A318 21
Ho REHEBESEAARE
98,770F 7T(20214F : A R ¥
92,415F 7% )°

35. EXRAEARS

BEAMBERRTEMBHANES
SN REENIwE AR ETTETT
R 5 RAEFRIT

(a) BKEMERS
Year ended 31 December

BZ=12A318LLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFR ARETT

Rental expenses to a related party St F—REEEHNHEESHS
— Hanzhou Qiyue Investment — NI EE IR G R

Management Co., Ltd.* (ot NS

* English name is for identification purpose only.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Recurring transaction (continued)

In 2022 and 2021, the Group entered into lease
agreement and supplement lease agreement with
Hangzhou Qiyue Investment Management Co.,
Ltd. for a term commencing on 1 January 2021
and ending on 30 June 2021; and 1 July 2021 and
ending on 31 December 2021 for the lease of the
leased premise (the “Leased Premises”). The Group
further entered into supplemental lease agreement
to extend lease term commencing on 1 January
2022 and ending on 30 June 2022; and 1 July 2022
and ending on 31 December 2022 (collectively, the
“Lease Agreement”). The rent payable under the
Lease Agreement was determined with reference to
the prevailing market rent for similar properties at
the same development and in neighbouring areas
at which the Leased Premises are located that the
rent payable under the Lease Agreement is fair and
reasonable and consistent with the market rent for
similar premises in similar locations. The transaction
contemplated under the Lease Agreement is
fully exempt from shareholders’ approval and all
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

35. EXBEBEIRZ (&)

(a)

REMRG(E)

20224 20214 A & B 5t
HREEME(HEYE]) En
MNEREIS B E R AR AR
Eam k@ H S HRA
20211818 # &2021F6A
30H AR 2021 7B 1H#EE
2021F12A31B &R K& EH
E—FFIUMAEERHZE AT
KA H2022F1 818 &=
20226 A30H 1k : K202247
A18 # =20224128318 It
(B AEmE) BEHAER
BREMNZESHI2EHEWERN
BEAI B REEEEYEN
ERmMSHEEEE BREBEHEE
WEEMZHEBATAIE S
HERBEEYENTISHES —
B-HEBRBEBTRETRSE
FEARET ETRBE14AE
RN R BERFTE TR ©

Note: Hangzhou Qiyue Investment Management Co., Ltd. MisE: MBS E TR AR A A
is a former shareholder of Zhejiang Sunlight which is BT REMRTIEE - E
beneficially owned as to by Mr. Chen Hua. Mr. Chen PREES AT o PRI
Hua is a director and a shareholder of the Company. EARARIESRRE-

Compensation of key management (b) TEEEASHMH

personnel

Year ended 31 December
BEZ12A31BLFE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETF T
Salaries, allowances and benefits e R R EYRET
in kind 2,225 1,625
Contributions to retirement RURAE T8I R
benefits schemes 45 72
2,270 1,697
FIEXERERAR —ZB-FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE

36.

37.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Capital commitments of the Group as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements were as follows:

36.

BAREIE
N & B 720224 K%202112H31H°
RRERE M BMEPIELBENER
APEWR

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2022 2021
202245 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTET
Contracted but not provided for SEEEES T
— Purchase of property, plant —BEME BERZE
and equipment 1,044 7,213

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group has established the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for its Hong Kong
employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately
in funds which are under the control of independent
trustees. The retirement benefit scheme contributions
charged to profit or loss represent contributions paid
or payable by the Group to the scheme at 5% of each
of the employees’ monthly relevant income capped at
HK$30,000. In addition, the PRC employees employed by
the Group are members of the state-managed retirement
benefit schemes operated by the PRC Government. The
Group is required to contribute at certain percentage of
the eligible employees’ salaries to the retirement benefit
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is
to make the required contributions under the schemes.
At 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were no forfeited
contributions available to reduce future obligations.
The total contributions made by the Group to the MPF
Scheme and the PRC retirement benefit schemes for the
year ended 31 December 2022 are RMB3,319,000 (2021:
RMB2,410,000).

2022 Annual Report

37.

BIRBFEE
AEBEBEAEBEBRER AT MER
Berral([aEesrEl ) -Zar8lm
BEUBYEAAEENESEA D
A - RIBRIRBR A ERAKEF 2
TR AAEBIZSEE S A30,000
B ALERNEBS A RAS%EK
FERT T BRI ER o o - AR E R
/R B B 192 00 F R B AT & i AY
BRERRKREFTE - NEBER
BEREEHFENE LA RIKE
FletE8EHER AX SR B
B AEERZERKBEFTE ZH
—EXABREBEZTEEL R EMH
e 7A20224F 20214128318 17
EA AR D R REE 2 B8 Bt
W HE2022F12A31B IEFE - K
EEMARES TS P ERKENF
SED o B A ARK3,319,000
70(20214F : AR#¥2,410,0007T)°



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by
the Company at the end of the Reporting Period are set

out below:

Place and date of
incorporation

38. B A RFE

Attributable equity
interest and voting

RBEMRARRERELHAZEFTEZ
MEBRRFEHIIMT

and principal place Registered/ power held by the Principal
Name of Subsidiary of operation paid up capital Company activities
k f B 37 4 26 % B B afEs,/ ARARHEH
il PNCIEE URTEEXMH BRBRA BlaRERRERE TEXH
2022 2021
2022% 20215
Direct:
B
Darkblue Investment Limited the BVI, US$50,000 100% 100% Investment holding
31 January 2019
RERERRAA] KBRS 50,000% 7T 100% 100% REZR
2019F1H31H
Classic Top Investment the BVI, Us$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Development Limited 2 December 2021
Classic Top Investment EBRRES EY 100% 100% ®EZER
Development Limited 202112 A28
Leading Source Limited Hong Kong, HK$ 1 100% - Investment holding
9 November 2021
BRERAR B 2021511 A9H 1T 100% - REZR
Diwang Trading Limited Hong Kong, HK$ 1 100% - Investment holding
(formerly known as Diwang 31 January 2022
Industrial Holdings Limited)
TIESERARGGIETE  BE 202F1A318 1T 100% - REZR
EXERBERAR)
Indirect:
R :
HongKong Gorgeous Hong Kong, HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Investment Limited 7 March 2019
BAENTREBRAR &4 2019F3A7H 10,0007t 100% 100% REZR
HTREMMHREBRAR  the PRC, RMB90,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing
Zhejiang Sunlight Material 18 December 2003 and sales of faux
Technology Co., Ltd* leather chemicals
(“Zhejiang Sunlight”)
HIREMMERIRAERAR B 2003F12818H ARE 100% 100% BERHEALE
(DITRE ] 90,000,0007T t8m
FIEXERERAR —ZB-FFR
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mE B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H ILFE
38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 38. B A TS (&)

Place and date of Attributable equity
incorporation interest and voting
and principal place Registered/ power held by the Principal
Name of Subsidiary of operation paid up capital Company activities
k f B 37 4 26 2 B B afEx,/ ARARBHEH
WEARERE DYESSE 311 BRRA EhERERRERE TEEH
2022 2021

20225 20214

Mixmatric Investment Hong Kong, HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Holdings Limited 21 June 2021
Mixmatric Investment Holdings &% 2021463218 1,000,000/ 7T 100% 100% RELER
Limited
FYHBZAERERAAF  the PRC, 12 July 2021 RMB1,000,000 100% 100% Corporate
(note) management
A BEAZAERERRA HE - 2021678120 AR 100% 100% (¥ERE
(FaE) 1,000,0007C
FERBERERAT the PRC, RMB3,000,000 100% — Investment holding
(note) 12 January 2022
EREREERERAR HE - 2022617120 AEH 100% - REZK
L) 3,000,0007T
EMFHIEBEXER AT the PRC, RMB5,000,000 70.5% - Manufacturing and
30 March 2022 sales of Chinese
baijiu
BNFEHIEEEERRA FE - 202263 A30H AR 70.5% - BERHERE
5,000,0007T
note: Registered as wholly-owned foreign enterprises under the Mizk: BB BEUEETAMAIEBEER
PRC law. )

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2022 Annual Report
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A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # Z2022F12H31H IF F/E

39. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY-OWNED

SUBSIDIARY THAT HAVE MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Summarised financial information in respect of &} %t
THEBEZEAER AR, which the Group has material non-
controlling interests, is set out below. The non-controlling
interests held 29.5% of ownership interests and voting
rights in the subsidiary. The summarised financial
information of E /Nt FEHZEBR QA prepared in
accordance with the significant accounting policies of the

Group are as follows:

BENBELEIEBEXAERAF

Financial information of statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income

39. BEEAKERERNIEZE

o) PGS

FAASEEAEREERERNE
MEHERERERARZHBHER
BEZEH T o JEERRAE R FF A % M
BN R 229.5%M & RIrEH#E - RiE
AEESZEHBRBHENEIMNTM
TEBXEERARZHMBEREZM
™

BB REMPEH KEREER

2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBFIT
Revenue WA 241,191 -
Cost of sales SHER AR (88,254) -
Expenses sz (69,593) -
Impaired loss on trade receivables B ZRWGRIE 2 B EE (531) -
Profit before taxation BR A% A& Al 82,813 -
Income tax expense Frgfif > (22,585) -
Profit for the year N A 60,228 -
Profit and total comprehensive AR A A F AE ) &
income for the year attributable to: ZHEWALLEE
Equity holders of the Company RARERFAA 42,461 -
Non-controlling interests of the REB T RER
Group 17,767 =
60,228 =

FEIBXRERARNE —B--FFRH
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REMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £20224¥12H31H It F/&

39. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY-OWNED
SUBSIDIARY THAT HAVE MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

BMNFHEIEBEXARAF

Financial information of statement of financial

39. BEEAKERERNIEZE
i) NS E )

MR R EH

position
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBFT
Non-current assets EMBEE 79 -
Current assets MENEE 143,261 -
Current liabilities MEAE (78,112) -
65,228 =
Equity attributable to: AT AT :
Equity holders of the Company RArlE=RFAA 45,986 -
Non-controlling interests of the REE IR ER
Group, representing accumulated ERFE RN B A A
non-controlling interests of the 2 REtIFtERR iz
subsidiary at the end of the year 19,242 =
65,228 =
Financial information of statement of cash flows BEmERMBEER
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTFIT
Net cash outflow from operating KETEBIR SR F
activities (6,093) =
Net cash inflow from financing BB RENIR &R A SR
activities
—included in consolidated statement —st AZEHERER
of cash flows 1,475 =
— eliminated on consolidation — & PR EI8H 38,515 -
39,990 -
Net cash inflow RERANFE 33,897 -

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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A BERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, E2022F12H31H IEFE

40. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the Reporting Period, the Board
proposed to implement the following changes in the
Company’s shares:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the Share Consolidation whereby every five (5)
issued and unissued Existing Shares of par value of
US$0.0005 each will be consolidated into one (1)
Consolidated Share of par value of US$0.0025 each.

increase the authorised share capital of the
Company from US$1,000,000 divided into
2,000,000,000 Existing Shares to US$5,000,000
divided into 10,000,000,000 Existing Shares (or
2,000,000,000 Consolidated Shares upon the
Share Consolidation becoming effective). Subject
to passing of an ordinary resolution by the
Shareholders at the EGM to approve the Increase in
Authorised Share Capital, the Increase in Authorised
Share Capital will become effective on the date of
EGM.

Subject to, among other things, the Share
Consolidation and the Increase in Authorised
Share Capital having become effective, the Board
proposes to conduct the Rights Issue on the
basis of three (3) Rights Shares for every two (2)
Consolidated Shares held on the Record Date at
the Subscription Price of HK$0.67 per Rights Share,
to raise up to approximately HK$289,000,000
million before expenses by way of issuing up to
432,000,000 Rights Shares. Assuming that there
is no change in the number of issued Shares on
or before the Record Date, the estimated net
proceeds of the Rights Issue will be approximately
HK$287,000,000 million.

Details of the above proposed Share Consolidation,
Increase in Authorised Share Capital and proposed Right
Issues are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
3 March 2023.

As at the date of approval for issuance of the
consolidated financial statements, the proposed Share
Consolidation, Increase in Authorised Share Capital and
proposed Right Issues have not yet taken place.

40. FEHEEE
RIBEBKE EESRZUADA
BREHEIATES :

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

& BHEBRG)KRERET
M AREEITEMRMEME.00055% T2
REBRODBEEHE—(1)RER
ME{E0.0025%& T2 & 1S -

122 B2 VA FEB&ZN 1,000,000
=% 7t.( % £2,000,000,0000% 3R B
A% (7 )3 HNZ5,000,000% 7T( D A
10,000,000,0008% 38 A& A 19 )( 3%
FFR% 17 A B E 3 142,000,000,000
A& OHIR D ) o IR R R IR R AF 5
A LBBE BT EAZRR AN
AEIENNSETE B ANIE - 38 DA TE R
AR R RIR S B BB AERK -

F(HPBE)BRHEFRIEINE
EBRAERE EESERER
EEBHEREMQKRE K
MEZE=QCIRERR D 2 E%E
LARREE B &I IR A% 15 0.67 /87T
ETHEBR BEBRBETRS
432,000,0000% £ i i 10 & & &
% #9289,000,00078 7T ( #0 Bk 53
S A1) BRER R R ek H Higk 2 Al
BETRMHEE MESS) - HAR
ZHEFSREFEEOAR
287,000,000 7T °

bR RAD A B B INEE IR R
BEERZFBRINAARBHG
2023F3A3R 2 RE -

REEA B S REBIETIRAE 2
SR A BF - 8 05A 2 R AN R 2 4
R MR AR -

N WV

FEEXRERARDA

—E-—FER
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Five Year Financial Summary

EIFHMBRE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #&{Z2022F 12H31H IFF/E

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the =~ ANEESFAEMKEENEEREER
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the BEME (A TR KBS S
published audited consolidated financial statements is set out WwER)EH AT :
below:
RESULTS 4
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20226 20214 20204 20194 2018%F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT ARETr ARETT AR%®Tx ARET:H
Revenue A 501,437 233,945 134,441 182,681 167,307
Profit/(loss) before taxation B AT,/ (EiB) 62,667 (1,476) (2,788) 28,976 35,307
Income tax expenses FT {3 Hif X (23,049) (1,124) (369) (4,852) (4,517)
Profit/(loss) for the year EREH,/ (EB) 39,618 (2,600) (3,157) 24,124 30,790
Profit/(loss) for the year ARABEBAEGLER
attributable to owners wH,/ (B8)
of the Company 21,851 (2,600) (3,157) 24,124 30,790
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENEE
As at 31 December
R12A31H8
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20224 20214 20204 20195 20184
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®ETx ARETR
Total assets BEE 446,378 313,174 264,007 205,671 175,791
Total liabilities BAEE (95,995) (43,595) (26,656) (61,365) (48,623)
Total equity B 350,383 269,579 237,351 144,306 127,168

The summary above does not form part of the audited

consolidated financial statements.

DIWANG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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